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Directors’ Report

The directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2013.

Principal Activities

The Company is principally engaged in the business of investment holding whilst the principal activities of its 
subsidiaries are set out in Note 5 to the financial statements. There have been no significant changes in the 
nature of these activities during the financial year. 

Results

The Group The Company
RM’000 RM’000

Profit/(Loss) after taxation for the financial year 5,051 (209)

Attributable to:-
Owners of the Company 4,579 (209)
Non-controlling interests 472 -

5,051 (209)

Dividends

Since the end of the previous financial year, the Company paid a first and final single tier dividend of 1.5 sen per 
ordinary share amounting to RM1,800,000 in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2012.

The directors recommend the payment of a final single tier dividend of 1.5 sen per ordinary share on the 
120,000,000 shares as at the date of this report amounting to RM1,800,000 to be approved by the shareholders 
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. This dividend will be accounted for as a liability in the period when 
it is approved by the shareholders.

Reserves And Provisions

All material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year are disclosed in the financial 
statements. 

Issues Of Shares And Debentures

During the financial year,

(a)	 there were no changes in the authorised and issued and paid up share capital of the Company; and 

(b)	 there were no issues of debentures by the Company.
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Treasury Shares

During the financial year, the Company purchased 1,055,000 of its issued ordinary shares from the open 
market at a price of RM0.85 per share. The total consideration paid for the purchase was RM919,634 including 
transaction costs. The shares purchased are being held as treasury shares in accordance with Section 67A of 
the Companies Act 1965 and are presented as a deduction from equity.

As at 30 June 2013, the Company held as treasury shares a total of 1,055,000 of its 120,000,000 issued and fully 
paid-up ordinary shares. The treasury shares are held at a carrying amount of RM919,634. Relevant details on 
the treasury shares are disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements.

Options Granted Over Unissued Shares

During the financial year, no options were granted by the Company to any person to take up any unissued shares 
in the Company.

Bad And Doubtful Debts

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable 
steps to ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of 
allowance for impairment losses on receivables, and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been 
written off and that adequate allowance had been made for impairment losses on receivables.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that would require the further writing 
off of bad debts, or the additional allowance for impairment losses on receivables in the financial statements 
of the Group and of the Company.

Current Assets

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable 
steps to ascertain that any current assets other than debts, which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary 
course of business, including their value as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of the Company, 
have been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the values 
attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

Valuation Methods

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which render 
adherence to the existing methods of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading 
or inappropriate.

Directors’ Report (cont’d)
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Contingent And Other Liabilities 

The contingent liabilities are disclosed in Note 41 to the financial statements. At the date of this report, there 
does not exist:- 

(a)	 any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial 
year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(b)	 any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial 
year.

No contingent or other liability of the Group and of the Company has become enforceable or is likely to become 
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the 
directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations 
when they fall due.

Change Of Circumstances 

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this 
report or the financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated in 
the financial statements misleading.

Items Of An Unusual Nature 

The results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not, in the opinion 
of the directors, substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, 
transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect substantially 
the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year.

Directors

The directors who served since the date of the last report are as follows:-

Tan Kee Choong 
Chooi Yoey Sun 
Wong Maw Chuan 
Yap Khong 
Lim Yin Chow
Dato’ Mohd Shafei Bin Abdullah (Appointed on 13 September 2013) 
Dato’ Anuar Bin Othman (Resigned on 18 march 2013)

Directors’ Report (cont’d)
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Directors’ Interests

According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors holding office at the end of the 
financial year in shares in the Company and its related corporations during the financial year are as follows:-

Number Of Ordinary Shares Of RM0.50 Each
At 

1.7.2012 Bought Sold
At

30.6.2013

Direct Interests
Tan Kee Choong 31,200,004 - - 31,200,004
Chooi Yoey Sun 31,028,250 - - 31,028,250

Indirect Interest
Lim Yin Chow 25,092,650 - - 25,092,650

By virtue of their interests in shares in the Company, Tan Kee Choong, Chooi Yoey Sun and Lim Yin Chow are 
deemed to have interests in shares in its subsidiaries to the extent of the Company’s interest, in accordance with 
Section 6A of the Companies Act 1965.

The other directors holding office at the end of the financial year did not have any interests in shares in the 
Company or its related corporations during the financial year.

Directors’ Benefits

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive any benefit 
(other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by 
directors as shown in the financial statements, or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the Company) by 
reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which the 
director is a member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest except for any 
benefits which may be deemed to arise from transactions entered into in the ordinary course of business with 
companies in which certain directors have substantial financial interests as disclosed in Note 38 to the financial 
statements. 

Neither during nor at the end of the financial year was the Group or the Company a party to any arrangements 
whose object is to enable the directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures 
of the Company or any other body corporate.

Significant Events During The Financial Year

The significant events during the financial year are disclosed in Note 45 to the financial statements.

Significant Events Occurring After The Reporting Period

The significant events occurring after the reporting period are disclosed in Note 46 to the financial statements.

Directors’ Report (cont’d)
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Auditors

The auditors, Messrs. Crowe Horwath, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed In Accordance With A Resolution Of The Directors
Dated 

Tan Kee Choong

Chooi Yoey Sun

Directors’ Report (cont’d)
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We, Tan Kee Choong and Chooi Yoey Sun, being two of the directors of Signature International Berhad, state 
that, in the opinion of the directors, the financial statements set out on pages 73 to 137 are drawn up in 
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Group and of the Company at 30 June 2013 and of their results and cash flows for the financial year ended 
on that date.

The supplementary information set out in Note 48, which is not part of the financial statements, is prepared 
in all material respects, in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised 
and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and the directive of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad.

Signed In Accordance With A Resolution Of The Directors
Dated 

Tan Kee Choong Chooi Yoey Sun

I, Tan Kee Choong, I/C No. 620318-05-5595, being the director primarily responsible for the financial management 
of Signature International Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out 
on pages 73 to 137 are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration 
conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act 
1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by
Tan Kee Choong, I/C No. 620318-05-5595, 
at Kuala Lumpur in the Federal Territory
on this 

Before me Tan Kee Choong

Statement By Directors

Statutory declaration
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Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Signature International Berhad, which comprise the statements of 
financial position as at 30 June 2013 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and 
of the Company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information, as set out on pages 73 to 137.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as to give a true 
and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for 
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give 
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the 
Company as of 30 June 2013 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended 
in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and 
the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:-

(a)	 In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the 
Company and its subsidiaries of which we have acted as auditors have been properly kept in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act;

(b)	 We have considered the financial statements and the auditors’ reports of all the subsidiaries of which we 
have not acted as auditors, which are indicated in Note 5 to the financial statements;

Independent Auditors’ Report To The Members Of

SIGNATURE INTERNATIONAL BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No : 754118 - K
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Cont’d)

(c)	 We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the 
Company’s financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the 
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and we have received satisfactory information and 
explanations required by us for those purposes; and

(d)	T he audit reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries did not contain any qualification or any 
adverse comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act.

Other Reporting Responsibilities

The supplementary information set out in Note 48 on page 138 is disclosed to meet the requirement of 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The directors are responsible 
for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, 
Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA 
Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary information 
is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad.

Other Matters

1.	 As stated in Note 3.1 to the financial statements, Signature International Berhad adopted Malaysian 
Financial Reporting Standards on 1 July 2012 with a transition date of 1 July 2011. These standards 
were applied retrospectively by directors to the comparative information in these financial statements, 
including the statements of financial position as at 30 June 2012 and 1 July 2011, and the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the financial year ended 30 June 2012 and related disclosures. We were not engaged to report 
on the restated comparative information and it is unaudited. Our responsibilities as part of our audit of 
the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 have, in these circumstances, included 
obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the opening balances as at 1 July 2012 do not contain 
misstatements that materially affect the financial position as of 30 June 2013 and financial performance 
and cash flows for the financial year then ended.

2.	T his report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the 
Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other 
person for the content of this report.

Crowe Horwath Chua Wai Hong
Firm No: AF 1018	 Approval No: 2974/09/15 (J)
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur

Independent Auditors’ Report To The Members Of
SIGNATURE INTERNATIONAL BERHAD (Cont’d)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Company No : 754118 - K
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 The Group The Company
30.6.2013 30.6.2012 1.7.2011 30.6.2013 30.6.2012 1.7.2011

Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investment in subsidiaries 5 - - - 30,337 30,337 30,337
Property, plant and equipment 6 7,356 47,213 32,995 - - -
Investment properties 7 16,400 15,445 14,956 - - -
Other investments 8 - - - - - -
Long-term receivables 11 4,141 2,094 3,715 - - -

27,897 64,752 51,666 30,337 30,337 30,337

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 9 14,199 11,582 10,258 - - -
Amount owing by contract 

customers 10 7,755 4,007 2,803 - - -
Trade receivables 11 46,423 38,889 41,011 - - -
Other receivables, deposits  

and prepayments 12 6,053 5,307 5,555 3 3 3
Amount owing by subsidiaries 13 - - - 25,131 28,357 31,172
Tax refundable 1,652 1,843 2,871 445 61 696
Short-term investments 14 27,871 27,931 12,493 4,383 4,337 1,823
Fixed deposit with a  

licensed bank 15 155 150 166 - - -
Cash and bank balances 19,623 15,715 21,042 40 199 820

123,731 105,424 96,199 30,002 32,957 34,514
Non-current assets held  

for sale 16 40,341 - - - - -

164,072 105,424 96,199 30,002 32,957 34,514

TOTAL ASSETS 191,969 170,176 147,865 60,339 63,294 64,851

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AT 30 JUNE 2013 
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The Group The Company
30.6.2013 30.6.2012 1.7.2011 30.6.2013 30.6.2012 1.7.2011

Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 17 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000
Merger deficit 18 (28,123) (28,567) (28,567) - - -
Treasury shares 19 (920) - - (920) - -
Retained profits 20 72,288 69,953 67,021 1,178 3,187 4,743
Foreign exchange  

translation reserve 21 79 (58) - - - -

 TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE 
TO OWNERS OF THE 
COMPANY 103,324 101,328 98,454 60,258 63,187 64,743

NON-CONTROLLING 
INTERESTS 2,376 1,904 1,461 - - -

TOTAL EQUITY 105,700 103,232 99,915 60,258 63,187 64,743

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred taxation 22 2,548 2,430 2,418 - - -
Long-term borrowings 23 18,912 19,519 9,887 - - -

21,460 21,949 12,305 - - -

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Amount owing to contract 

customers 10 34,343 19,969 15,161 - - -
Trade payables 24 14,901 13,449 12,242 - - -
Other payables and accruals 25 12,547 9,073 6,729 81 107 108
Provision for taxation 430 109 269 - - -
Short-term borrowings 26 2,588 2,395 1,244 - - -

64,809 44,995 35,645 81 107 108

TOTAL LIABILITIES 86,269 66,944 47,950 81 107 108

TOTAL EQUITY AND 
LIABILITIES 191,969 170,176 147,865 60,339 63,294 64,851

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AT 30 JUNE 2013 (Cont’d)
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The Group The Company
    2013    2012     2013    2012

Note      RM’000     RM’000      RM’000     RM’000

REVENUE 29 120,848 96,765 1,878 3,897

COST OF SALES (85,647) (61,797) - -

GROSS PROFIT 35,201 34,968 1,878 3,897

OTHER INCOME 4,360 4,691 148 119

39,561 39,659 2,026 4,016

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES (4,542) (4,779) - -

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (19,291) (17,359) (2,530) (2,447)

OTHER EXPENSES (5,384) (6,862) - -

FINANCE COSTS (1,555) (1,473) - -

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 30 8,789 9,186 (504) 1,569

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 31 (3,738) (3,607) 295 (725)

PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAXATION 5,051 5,579 (209) 844

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items that may be reclassified subsequently  
to profit or loss
- Foreign exchange translation 137 (58) - -

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE  INCOME/(EXPENSES)  
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 5,188 5,521 (209) 844

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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 The Group The Company
    2013    2012     2013    2012

Note      RM’000     RM’000      RM’000     RM’000

PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAXATION   
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:-
Owners of the Company 4,579 5,332 (209) 844
Non-controlling interests 472 247 - -

5,051 5,579 (209) 844

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(EXPENSES)  ATTRIBUTABLE TO:-
Owners of the Company 4,716 5,274 (209) 844
Non-controlling interests 472 247 - -

5,188 5,521 (209) 844

EARNINGS PER SHARE  (SEN)
- basic 32 3.8 4.4
- diluted 32 Not applicable Not applicable

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013 (Cont’d) 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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 Attributable To Owners Of The Company  

 Non-Distributable Distributable

Foreign

Exchange Attributable Non-

Share Merger Translation Retained To Owners Of Controlling Total

Note Capital Deficit Reserve Profits The Company Interests Equity

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

The Group 

Balance at 1.7.2011 60,000 (28,567) - 67,021 98,454 1,461 99,915

Profit after taxation for the 
financial year  -  - - 5,332 5,332 247 5,579

Other comprehensive 
income for the financial 
year, net of tax:

 - Foreign exchange 
translation  -  - (58)  - (58)  - (58)

Total comprehensive income 
for the financial year  -  - (58) 5,332 5,274 247 5,521

Issuance of shares to non-
controlling interest of a 
subsidiary -  -  -  -  - 196 196

Contribution by and 
distribution to owners of 
the Company:

 - Dividend paid 33  -  -  - (2,400) (2,400)  - (2,400)

Balance at 30.6.2012 60,000 (28,567) (58) 69,953 101,328 1,904 103,232

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013 
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 Attributable To Owners Of The Company  

 Non-Distributable Distributable

Foreign

Exchange Attributable Non-

Share Merger Treasury Translation Retained To Owners Of Controlling Total

Note Capital Deficit Shares Reserve Profits The Company Interests Equity

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

The Group 

Balance at 1.7.2012 60,000 (28,567) - (58) 69,953 101,328 1,904 103,232

Profit after taxation 
for the financial 
year  -  - - - 4,579 4,579 472 5,051

Other 
comprehensive 
income for the 
financial year, net 
of tax:

 - Foreign exchange 
translation  -  - - 137  - 137 - 137

Total comprehensive 
income for the 
financial year  -  - - 137 4,579 4,716 472 5,188

Reversal of merger 
deficit due to 
deconsolidation 
of a struck off 
subsidiary  - 444 -  - (444) - - -

Contribution by 
and distribution 
to owners of the 
Company:

 - Purchase 
of treasury 
shares -  - (920)  -  - (920) - (920)

 - Dividend paid 33 -  - -  - (1,800) (1,800) - (1,800)

Balance at 
30.6.2013 60,000 (28,123) (920) 79 72,288 103,324 2,376 105,700

		   

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013 (Cont’d)
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Non-Distributable Distributable
Share Treasury Retained    Total  

Capital Shares Profits    Equity
The Company Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Balance at 1.7.2011 60,000 - 4,743 64,743

 Profit after taxation/Total 
comprehensive income for the 
financial year - - 844 844

Contribution by and distribution to 
owners of the Company:
 - Dividend paid 33 - - (2,400) (2,400)

Balance at 30.6.2012/1.7.2012 60,000 - 3,187 63,187

Loss after taxation/ 
Total comprehensive expenses  
for the financial year - - (209) (209)

Contribution by and distribution to 
owners of the Company:
 - Purchase of treasury shares - (920) - (920)
 - Dividend paid 33 - - (1,800) (1,800)

Balance at 30.6.2013 60,000 (920) 1,178 60,258

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013 (Cont’d)
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The Group The Company
    2013    2012     2013    2012

     RM’000     RM’000      RM’000     RM’000

CASH FLOWS FROM/(FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 8,789 9,186 (504) 1,569
Adjustments for:-
Allowance for impairment losses on:

- trade receivables 1,879 4,632 - -
- other receivables 28       - - -

Inventories written down 591 76 - -
Bad debts written off 24 55 - -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,455 2,410 - -
Interest expense 1,020 892 - -
Loss on disposal of investment properties - 7 - -
Plant and equipment written off 133 22 - -
Dividend income from subsidiaries -       - - (2,000)
Dividend income from short-term investments (195) (183) (103) (101)
Deposit forfeited - (6) - -
Interest income (56)  (212) (1) (6)
Fair value gain on short-term investments (670) (282) (43) (12)
Fair value adjustment for investment properties - (787) -       -
Gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary (222)       - -       -
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property,  

plant and equipment (64) 93 -       -
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of short-term investments 25 (16) -       -
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange (374) (600) -       -
Write-back of allowance for impairment  

losses on receivables (2,068) (1,914) -       -

Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 11,295 13,373 (651) (550)
Net increase in amount owing to contract customers 10,626 3,604 - -
Increase in inventories (3,208) (1,400) - -
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables (9,917) 1,420 - -
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables 5,283 3,527 (26) (1)

CASH FROM/(FOR) OPERATIONS 14,079 20,524 (677) (551)

Interest paid (1,020) (892) - -
Income tax paid (3,108) (2,727) (89) (90)

NET CASH FROM/(FOR) OPERATING  
ACTIVITIES CARRIED FORWARD 9,951 16,905 (766) (641)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements



81SIGNATURE INTERNATIONAL BERHAD (754118-K)
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

The Group The Company
 2013  2012  2013  2012

  RM’000  RM’000   RM’000  RM’000

NET CASH FROM/(FOR) OPERATING  
ACTIVITIES BROUGHT FORWARD 9,951 16,905 (766) (641)

CASH FLOWS (FOR)/FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant  and equipment 34 (1,758) (16,670) - -
Purchase of short-term investments (8,995) (19,609) (1,800) (2,502)
Purchase of investment properties (955) - - -
Proceeds from disposal of  investment properties - 1,150 - -
Proceeds from disposal of  property, plant and equipment 269 57 - -
Proceeds from disposal of  short-term investments 9,700 4,469 1,797 -
Interest received 56 212 1 6
Repayment from subsidiaries - - 3,226 4,815
Dividend received from short-term investments 195 183 103 101

NET CASH (FOR)/FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,488) (30,208) 3,327 2,420

CASH FLOWS (FOR)/FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Drawdown of term loans 878 14,701 - -
Proceeds from issuance of share capital of  

a subsidiary to non-controlling interest - 196 - -
Repayment of term loans (2,126) (4,549) - -
Repayment of hire purchase  obligations (685) (358) - -
Purchase of treasury shares (920) - (920) -
Dividend paid (1,800) (2,400) (1,800) (2,400)

NET CASH (FOR)/FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (4,653) 7,590 (2,720) (2,400)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH  
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,810 (5,713) (159) (621)

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSLATION 103 370 - -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT  
BEGINNING OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 15,865 21,208 199 820

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END  
OF THE  FINANCIAL YEAR 37 19,778 15,865 40 199

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013 (Cont’d)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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1.	 General Information

	T he Company is a public company limited by shares and is incorporated under the Companies Act 1965 in 
Malaysia. The domicile of the Company is Malaysia. The registered office and principal place of business 
are as follows:-

Registered office	 :	 Lot 6.05, Level 6, KPMG Tower
		  8, First Avenue, Bandar Utama,
		  47800 Petaling Jaya,
		  Selangor Darul Ehsan.

Principal place of business	 :	 Lot 24, Jalan Teknologi,
		T  aman Sains Selangor 1, 
		  Kota Damansara, PJU5,
		  47810 Petaling Jaya,
		  Selangor Darul Ehsan.

	T he financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution 
of the directors dated 30 October 2013.

2.	P rincipal Activities

	T he Company is principally engaged in the business of investment holding whilst the principal activities of 
its subsidiaries are set out in Note 5 to the financial statements. There have been no significant changes 
in the nature of these activities during the financial year. 

3.	B asis Of Preparation 

	T he financial statements of the Group are prepared under the historical cost convention and modified to 
include other bases of valuation as disclosed in other sections under significant accounting policies, and 
in compliance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia.

3.1	T hese are the Group’s first set of financial statements prepared in accordance with MFRSs, which are 
also in line with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board.

	 In the previous financial year, the financial statements of the Group were prepared in accordance with 
Financial Reporting Standards (“FRSs”). The financial impacts on the transition from FRSs to MFRSs 
are disclosed in Note  47 to the financial statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013
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3.	B asis Of Preparation (CONT’D)

3.2	T he Group has not applied in advance the following accounting standards and interpretations (including 
the consequential amendments) that have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board 
(“MASB”) but are not yet effective for the current financial year:-

MFRSs and IC Interpretations (Including The Consequential Amendments)  Effective Date

MFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2015
MFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013
MFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2013
MFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013
MFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013
MFRS 119 Employee Benefits 1 January 2013
MFRS 127 Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013
MFRS 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2013
Amendments to MFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets  

and Financial Liabilities 1 January 2013
Amendments to MFRS 9 and MFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of MFRS 9 and 

Transition Disclosures 1 January 2015
Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 11 and MFRS 12: Transition Guidance 1 January 2013
Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 12 and MFRS 127: Investment Entities 1 January 2014
Amendments to MFRS 132: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 1 January 2014
Amendments to MFRS 136: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for 

Non-Financial Assets 1 January 2014
Amendments to MFRS 139: Novation of Derivatives and Continuation  

of Hedge Accounting 1 January 2014
IC Interpretation 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine 1 January 2013
IC Interpretation 21 Levies 1 January 2014
Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle 1 January 2013

	T he above accounting standards and interpretations (including the consequential amendments) are 
not relevant to the Group’s operations except as follows:-

(a)	M FRS 9 replaces the parts of MFRS 139 that relate to the classification and measurement of 
financial instruments. MFRS 9 divides all financial assets into 2 categories - those measured 
at amortised cost and those measured at fair value, based on the entity’s business model for 
managing its financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instruments. 
For financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the MFRS 139 requirement. An entity 
choosing to measure a financial liability at fair value will present the portion of the change in its 
fair value due to changes in the entity’s own credit risk in other comprehensive income rather 
than within profit or loss. There will be no financial impact on the financial statements of the 
Group upon its initial application but may impact its future disclosure.
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3.	B asis Of Preparation (CONT’D)

3.2	T he above accounting standards and interpretations (including the consequential amendments) are 
not relevant to the Group’s operations except as follows:- (Cont’d)

(b)	M FRS 10 replaces the consolidation guidance in MFRS 127 and IC Interpretation 112. Under 
MFRS 10, there is only one basis for consolidation, which is control. Extensive guidance has 
been provided in the standard to assist in the determination of control. These amendments have 
no material impact on the financial statements of the Group upon their initial application.

(c)	M FRS 12 is applicable to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, 
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. MFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and the 
disclosure requirements in this standard are more extensive than those in the current standards. 
Accordingly, there will be no financial impact on the financial statements of the Group upon its 
initial application but may impact its future disclosures. 

(d)	M FRS 13 defines fair value, provides guidance on how to determine fair value and requires 
disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of MFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both 
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items for which other MFRSs require 
or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements, except in 
specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements in MFRS 13 are more extensive 
than those required in the current standards and therefore there will be no financial impact 
on the financial statements of the Group upon its initial application but may impact its future 
disclosures.

(e)	T he amendments to MFRS 7 (Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities) 
require disclosures that will enable users of an entity’s financial statements to evaluate the 
effect or potential effect of netting arrangements, including rights of set-off associated with the 
entity’s recognised financial assets and recognised financial liabilities, on the entity’s financial 
position. There will be no financial impact on the financial statements of the Group upon its 
initial application but may impact its future disclosures.

(f)	T he amendment to MFRS 10, MFRS 12 and MFRS 127 require investment entities to measure 
particular subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss instead of consolidating them. The 
Company is an investment entity whose business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns 
from capital appreciation, investment income or both.  Accordingly, the Group will deconsolidate 
its subsidiaries upon the initial application of these amendments and to fair value the investments 
in accordance with MFRS 139.

(g)	T he amendments to MFRS 132 provide the application guidance for criteria to offset financial 
assets and financial liabilities. There will be no financial impact on the financial statements of 
the Group upon its initial application but may impact its future disclosures.

(h)	T he Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle contain amendments to MFRS 1, MFRS 
101, MFRS 116, MFRS 132 and MFRS 134. These amendments are expected to have no material 
impact on the financial statements of the Group upon their initial application but may impact its 
future disclosures.
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4.	S ignificant Accounting Policies
	

4.1	C ritical Accounting Estimates And Judgements

	 Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the directors and management and are based 
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and judgements that affect the application 
of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures, and have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses are discussed below:-

(a)	 Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

	T he estimates for the residual values, useful lives and related depreciation charges for the 
property, plant and equipment are based on commercial factors which could change significantly 
as a result of technical innovations and competitors’ actions in response to the market conditions.

	T he Group anticipates that the residual values of its property, plant and equipment will 
be insignificant. As a result, residual values are not being taken into consideration for the 
computation of the depreciable amount.

	 Changes in the expected level of usage and technological development could impact the 
economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation 
charges could be revised.

(b)	I ncome Taxes
	

	T here are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination 
may be different from the initial estimate. The Group recognises tax liabilities based on its 
understanding of the prevailing tax laws and estimates of whether such taxes will be due in 
the ordinary course of business. Where the final outcome of these matters is different from the 
amounts that were initially recognised, such difference will impact the income tax and deferred 
tax provisions in the year in which such determination is made.

(c)	I mpairment of Non-financial Assets

	 When the recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the estimate of the value-in-
use of the cash-generating unit to which the asset is allocated, the management is required to 
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to 
apply a suitable discount rate in order to determine the present value of those cash flows. 

(d)	C lassification Between Investment Properties and Owner-Occupied Properties

	T he Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property, and has developed 
criteria in making that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for 
capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a property generates cash 
flows largely independent of the other assets held by the Group. 

	 Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and 
another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for 
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately (or leased out separately 
under a finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could not 
be sold separately, the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held 
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

	 Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary services are 
so significant that a property does not qualify as investment property.



86

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013 (Cont’d)

SIGNATURE INTERNATIONAL BERHAD (754118-K)
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

4.	S ignificant Accounting Policies (CONT’D)
	

4.1	C ritical Accounting Estimates And Judgements (Cond’t)

(e)	I mpairment of Available-for-sale Financial Assets

	T he Group reviews its available-for-sale financial assets at the end of each reporting period to 
assess whether they are impaired. The Group also records impairment loss on available-for-
sale equity investments when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value 
below their cost. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement. 
In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, historical share price 
movements and the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its 
cost.

(f)	C lassification of Leasehold Land	

	T he classification of leasehold land as a finance lease or an operating lease requires the use 
of judgement in determining the extent to which risks and rewards incidental to its ownership 
lie. Despite the fact that there will be no transfer of ownership by the end of the lease term and 
that the lease term does not constitute the major part of the indefinite economic life of the land, 
management considered that the present value of the minimum lease payments approximated 
to the fair value of the land at the minimum lease. Accordingly, management judge that the 
Group has acquired substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the 
land through a finance lease.

(g)	C ontracts

	 Contracts accounting requires reliable estimation of the costs to complete the contract and 
reliable estimation of the stage of completion.

(i)	 Contract Revenue

	 Contract accounting requires that variation claims and incentive payments only be 
recognised as contract revenue to the extent that it is probable that they will be accepted 
by the customers. As the approval process often takes some time, a judgement is required 
to be made of its probability and revenue recognised accordingly.

(ii)	 Contract Costs

	 Using experience gained on each particular contract and taking into account the 
expectations of the time and materials required to complete the contract, management 
estimates the profitability of the contract on an individual basis at any particular time.

(h)	I mpairment of Trade and Other Receivables

	 An impairment loss is recognised when there is objective evidence that a financial asset is 
impaired. Management specifically reviews its loans and receivables financial assets and 
analyses historical bad debts, customer concentrations, customer creditworthiness, current 
economic trends and changes in the customer payment terms when making a judgment to 
evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for impairment losses. Where there is objective evidence 
of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated based on historical 
loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. If the expectation is different 
from the estimation, such difference will impact the carrying value of receivables.
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4.	S ignificant Accounting Policies (CONT’D)
	

4.1	C ritical Accounting Estimates And Judgements (Cond’t)

(i)	 Write-down of Inventories

	 Reviews are made periodically by management on damaged, obsolete and slow-moving 
inventories. These reviews require judgement and estimates. Possible changes in these 
estimates could result in revisions to the valuation of inventories. 

(j)	F air Value Estimates for Certain Financial Assets and Liabilities

	T he Group carries certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, which require extensive 
use of accounting estimates and judgement. While significant components of fair value 
measurement were determined using verifiable objective evidence, the amount of changes in 
fair value would differ if the Group uses different valuation methodologies. Any changes in fair 
value of these assets and liabilities would affect profit and equity.

4.2	B asis of Consolidation

	T he consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its 
subsidiaries made up to 30 June 2013.

	 A subsidiary is defined as a company in which the parent company has the power, directly or indirectly, 
to exercise control over its financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 

	 Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group up to the 
effective date on which control ceases, as appropriate.

	 Intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Where 
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to ensure consistency 
of accounting policies with those of the Group.

(a)	B usiness Combinations

	 Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. Under the acquisition 
method, the consideration transferred for acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets 
transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group at the acquisition 
date. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from 
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition related costs, other than the costs to issue 
debt or equity securities, are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

	 In a business combination achieved in stages, previously held equity interests in the acquiree 
are remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain or loss is 
recognised in profit or loss.

	 Non-controlling interests in the acquiree may be initially measured either at fair value or at the 
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net 
assets at the date of acquisition. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.
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4.	S ignificant Accounting Policies (CONT’D)

4.2	B asis of Consolidation (Cont’d)

(b)	N on-controlling Interests

	 Non-controlling interests are presented within equity in the consolidated statement of financial 
position, separately from the Company’s shareholders’ equity, and are separately disclosed 
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Transactions with non-controlling 
interests are accounted for as transactions with owners and are recognised directly in equity. 
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners 
of the parent and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed 
to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit 
balance. 

	 At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the 
amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of 
subsequent changes in equity.

(c)	A cquisitions of Non-controlling Interests

	 All changes in the parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of 
control 	 are accounted for as equity transactions. Any difference between the amount by which 
the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of consideration paid or received is 
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the parent.

(d)	L oss of Control

	 Upon loss of control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference 
between:-

(i)	 the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any 
retained interest in the former subsidiary; and

(ii)	 the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the former 
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.

	 Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the former 
subsidiary are accounted for (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained 
profits) in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were 
disposed of. The fair value of any investments retained in the former subsidiary at the date when 
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting 
under MFRS 139 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an 
associate or a jointly controlled entity.

	 As part of its transition to MFRSs, the Group elected not to restate those business combinations 
that occurred before the date of transition (1 July 2011). Such business combinations and the 
related goodwill and fair value adjustments have been carried forward from the previous FRS 
framework as at the date of transition.
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4.	S ignificant Accounting Policies (CONT’D)

4.3	F unctional and Foreign Currencies

(i)	 Functional and Presentation Currency

	T he individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are presented in the currency 
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates, which is the functional 
currency.

	T he consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is the 
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(ii)	 Transactions and Balances

	T ransactions in foreign currencies are converted into the respective functional currencies on 
initial recognition, using the exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction 
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period are translated at the 
rates ruling as of that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated using exchange 
rates that existed when the values were determined. All exchange differences are recognised in 
profit or loss.

(iii)	 Foreign Operations

	 Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to RM at the rates of exchange ruling 
at the end of the reporting period. Revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated 
at exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. All exchange differences arising from 
translation are taken directly to other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under 
the translation reserve. On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount recognised 
in other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is reclassified from 
equity to profit or loss.

	 Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from the acquisition of foreign operations are treated 
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operations and are recorded in the functional currency of 
the foreign operations and translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period.

4.4	F inancial Instruments
	

	 Financial instruments are recognised in the statements of financial position when the Group has 
become a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

	 Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the 
contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument 
classified as a liability, are reported as an expense or income. Distributions to holders of financial 
instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity.

	 Financial instruments are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends 
to settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

	 A financial instrument is recognised initially, at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial instrument 
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition 
or issue of the financial instrument.

	 Financial instruments recognised in the statements of financial position are disclosed in the individual 
policy statement associated with each item.
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4.	S ignificant Accounting Policies (CONT’D)

4.4	F inancial Instruments (Cont’d)

(a)	F inancial Assets 

	 On initial recognition, financial assets are classified as either financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables financial assets, or 
available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. 

(i)	 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

	 Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss when 
the financial asset is either held for trading or is designated to eliminate or significantly 
reduce a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise.  Derivatives 
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any gains 
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. Dividend income from this 
category of financial assets is recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive 
payment is established.

(ii)	 Held-to-maturity Investments

	 Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments and fixed maturities that the management has the positive intention and ability 
to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method less any impairment loss, with revenue recognised on an 
effective yield basis.

(iii)	 Loans and Receivables Financial Assets

	T rade receivables and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that 
are not quoted in an active market are classified as loans and receivables financial assets. 
Loans and receivables financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, less any impairment loss. Interest income is recognised by applying the 
effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest 
would be immaterial.

(iv)	 Available-for-sale Financial Assets

	 Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated 
in this category or are not classified in any of the other categories.

	 After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are remeasured to their fair 
values at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair 
value are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value 
reserve, with the exception of impairment losses. On derecognition, the cumulative gain or 
loss previously accumulated in the fair value reserve is reclassified from equity into profit 
or loss. 

	 Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when 
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

	 Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are 
measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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4.	S ignificant Accounting Policies (CONT’D)

4.4	F inancial Instruments (Cont’d)

(b)	F inancial Liabilities

	 All financial liabilities are initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method other than those 
categorised as fair value through profit or loss.

	 Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial liabilities that are either held for 
trading or are designated to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition 
inconsistency that would otherwise arise. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading 
unless they are designated as hedges.

(c)	E quity Instruments

	 Instruments classified as equity are measured at cost and are not remeasured subsequently.

(i)	 Ordinary Shares

	 Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in 
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from proceeds.

	 Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as liabilities when approved for appropriation.

(ii)	 Treasury Shares

	 When the Company’s own shares recognised as equity are bought back, the amount of the 
consideration paid, including all costs directly attributable, are recognised as a deduction 
from equity. Own shares purchased that are not subsequently cancelled are classified as 
treasury shares and are presented as a deduction from total equity. Where such shares 
are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any direct costs, is 
included in equity.

	 Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of 
any direct costs, is included in equity.

4.5	I nvestments in Subsidiaries

	 Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost in the statement of financial position of the Company 
and are reviewed for impairment at the end of the financial year if events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable.

	 On the disposal of the investments in subsidiaries, the difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the investments is recognised in profit or loss.

4.6	P roperty, Plant and Equipment

	 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses, if any. 
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4.	S ignificant Accounting Policies (CONT’D)

4.6	P roperty, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)

	 Depreciation is calculated under the straight-line method to write off the cost of the assets over their 
estimated useful lives. Depreciation of an asset does not cease when the asset becomes idle or is 
retired from active use unless the asset is fully depreciated. The principal annual rates used for this 
purpose are:-

Buildings
Leasehold land

over the remaining lease period of 94 years
over the lease period of 94 years

Computers 20% - 40%
Furniture and fittings, renovation and signboards 10%
Motor vehicles 20%
Plant and machinery, tools  and factory equipment 10%
Showroom and office equipment 10% - 20%

	T he depreciation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at 
the end of each reporting period to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are 
consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic 
benefits embodied in the items of the property, plant and equipment.

	 Capital work-in-progress represents assets under construction, and which are not ready for 
commercial use at the end of the reporting period. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost, and 
is transferred to the relevant category of assets and depreciated accordingly when the assets are 
completed and ready for commercial use.

	 Cost of capital work-in-progress includes direct cost, related expenditure and interest cost on 
borrowings taken to finance the construction or acquisition of the assets to the date that the assets 
are completed and put into use.

	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when the cost is incurred and it is probable that the future economic benefits 
associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. 
The carrying amount of parts that are replaced is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing 
of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Cost also comprises the 
initial estimate of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located for 
which the Group is obligated to incur when the asset is acquired, if applicable.

	 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset is included 
in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognised.

4.7	I mpairment 

(a)	I mpairment of Financial Assets

	 All financial assets (other than those categorised at fair value through profit or loss), are assessed 
at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence of impairment as a 
result of one or more events having an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset. 
For an equity instrument, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost is 
considered to be objective evidence of impairment. 
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4.	S ignificant Accounting Policies (CONT’D)

4.7	I mpairment  (Cont’d)

(a)	I mpairment of Financial Assets (Cont’d)

	 An impairment loss in respect of held-to-maturity investments and loans and receivables 
financial assets is recognised in profit or loss and is measured as the difference between the 
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the 
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

	 An impairment loss in respect of available-for-sale financial assets is recognised in profit or 
loss and is measured as the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and 
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in the 
fair value reserve. In addition, the cumulative loss recognised in other comprehensive income 
and accumulated in equity under fair value reserve, is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

	 With the exception of available-for-sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the 
amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an 
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment 
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at 
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been 
had the impairment not been recognised. In respect of available-for-sale equity instruments, 
impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or 
loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss made is recognised in other 
comprehensive income. 

(b)	I mpairment of Non-Financial Assets

	T he carrying values of assets, other than those to which MFRS 136 - Impairment of Assets 
does not apply, are reviewed at the end of each reporting period for impairment when there 
is an indication that the assets might be impaired. Impairment is measured by comparing the 
carrying values of the assets with their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount of the 
assets is the higher of the assets' fair value less costs to sell and their value‑in‑use, which is 
measured by reference to discounted future cash flow.

	 An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the asset is carried at its 
revalued amount. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease 
to the extent of a previously recognised revaluation surplus for the same asset.

	 In respect of assets other than goodwill, and when there is a change in the estimates used to 
determine the recoverable amount, a subsequent increase in the recoverable amount of an 
asset is treated as a reversal of the previous impairment loss and is recognised to the extent 
of the carrying amount of the asset that would have been determined (net of amortisation and 
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised. The reversal is recognised in profit or 
loss immediately, unless the asset is carried at its revalued amount. A reversal of an impairment 
loss on a revalued asset is credited to other comprehensive income. However, to the extent that 
an impairment loss on the same revalued asset was previously recognised as an expense in 
the statements of comprehensive income, a reversal of that impairment loss is recognised as 
income in the statements of comprehensive income. 
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4.	S ignificant Accounting Policies (CONT’D)

4.8	I nvestment Properties

	 Investment properties are properties held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or 
for both. Initially investment properties are measured at cost including transaction costs. Subsequent 
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value. Gains or losses arising from 
changes in the fair values of investment properties are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which 
they arise.

	 Investment properties are derecognised when they have either been disposed of or when the 
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from its 
disposal.

	 On the derecognition of an investment property, the difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

4.9	A ssets under Hire Purchase

	 Assets acquired under hire purchase are capitalised in the financial statements and are depreciated 
in accordance with the policy set out in Note 4.6 above. Each hire purchase payment is allocated 
between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance 
outstanding. Finance charges are allocated to the income statement over the periods of the respective 
hire purchase agreements.

4.10	I nventories

	 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in-
first out basis, and comprises the purchase price and incidentals incurred in bringing the inventories 
to their present location and condition. 

	 Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less the estimated costs of completion 
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

	 Where necessary, due allowance is made for all obsolete, damaged and slow-moving items.

4.11	A mounts Owing By/To Contract Customers

	T he amounts owing by/to contract customers are stated at cost plus profits attributable to contracts 
in progress less progress billings and allowance for foreseeable losses, if any. Cost includes direct 
materials, labour and applicable overheads.

4.12	C ash and Cash Equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, demand deposits, deposits pledged with 
financial institutions, bank overdrafts and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

4.13	P rovisions

	 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past events, when 
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at the 
end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of 
the time value of money is material, the provision is the present value of the estimated expenditure 
required to settle the obligation.
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4.	S ignificant Accounting Policies (CONT’D)

4.14	B orrowing Costs

	 Borrowing costs, directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of property, plant and 
equipment are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are 
ready for their intended use or sale. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during extended 
periods in which active development is interrupted.

	 All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss as expenses in the period in which they incurred.

4.15	I ncome Taxes

	 Income tax for the year comprises current and deferred tax. 

	 Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable profit for the 
year and is measured using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end 
of the reporting period.

	 Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

	 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences other than those 
that arise from goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s 
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the business combination costs or the 
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at 
the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and 
unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. 
The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available 
to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised. 

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. 

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same 
taxation authority.

	 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. 
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transactions either in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a business combination 
is included in the resulting goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the 
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the business combination costs.

4.16	E mployee Benefits

(a)	S hort-term Benefits

	 Wages, salaries, paid annual leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are recognised in profit 
or loss in the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group.
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4.	S ignificant Accounting Policies (CONT’D)

4.16	E mployee Benefits (Cont’d)

(b)	 Defined Contribution Plans

	T he Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in profit or loss in the 
period to which they relate. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group has no further 
liability in respect of the defined contribution plans.

4.17	 Government Grants

	 Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the 
grant will be received and all terms and conditions relating to the grants have been complied with. 
When the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is recognised as deferred captial grant on the 
Statement of Financial Position and is amortised to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the 
relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

4.18	C ontingent Liabilities 

	 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will 
only be confirmed by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised 
because it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of 
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

	 A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then be 
recognised as a provision.

4.19	R elated Parties

	 A party is related to an entity (referred to as the “reporting entity”) if:-

(a)	 A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if that person:-

(i)	 has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
(ii)	 has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
(iii)	 is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the 

reporting entity.

(b)	 An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:-

(i)	T he entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each 
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii)	 One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture 
of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii)	 Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv)	 One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
(v)	T he entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the 

reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself 
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.

(vi)	T he entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a) above.
(vii)	 A person identified in (a)(i) above has significant influence over the entity or is a member of 

the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

	 Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to 
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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4.	S ignificant Accounting Policies (CONT’D)

4.20	N on-Current Assets Held for Sale 

	 Non-current assets that are expected to be recovered primarily through sale rather than through 
continuing use are classified as held for sale. Upon classification as held for sale, noncurrent assets 
or components of a disposal group are not depreciated and are measured at the lower of their carrying 
amount and fair value less cost to sell. Any differences are recognised in profit or loss.

4.21	O perating Segments

	 An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it 
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions 
with any of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed 
regularly by the chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to 
the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

4.22	R evenue and Other Income

(a)	C ontracts

	 Revenue on contracts is recognised on the percentage of completion method unless the 
outcome of the contract cannot be reliably determined, in which case revenue on contracts 
is only recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that are recoverable. Foreseeable 
losses, if any, are provided for in full as and when it can be reasonably ascertained that the 
contract will result in a loss.

	T he stage of completion is determined based on the proportion that the contract costs incurred 
for work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs.

(b)	S ale of Goods

	 Revenue is recognised upon delivery of goods and customers’ acceptance and where applicable, 
net of returns and trade discounts.

(c)	S ervices

	 Revenue is recognised upon rendering of services and when the outcome of the transaction 
can be estimated reliably. In the event the outcome of the transaction could not be estimated 
reliably, revenue is recognised to the extent of the expenses incurred that are recoverable.

(d)	R ental Income

	 Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis.

(e)	I nterest Income

	 Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis, based on the effective yield on the investment.

	 Interest income on late payment is recognised on a receipt basis.

(f)	 Dividend Income

	 Dividend income from investment is recognised when the right to receive dividend payment is 
established.
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5.	I nvestment In Subsidiaries 

The Company
      2013     2012

     RM’000      RM’000

Unquoted shares, at cost 30,337 30,337

The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:-

Name of Company
Country of 

Incorporation
Effective 

Equity Interest Principal Activities
2013 2012

Direct subsidiaries:-

Signature Cabinet Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100% 100% Design, marketing and distribution of 
kitchen systems, wardrobe systems and 
built-in kitchen appliances.

Signature Aluminium Sdn.   
Bhd.

Malaysia 60% 60% Manufacture, supply, fabrication, and 
installation of aluminium, glass and 
aluminium related products for the retail 
and project business.

Signature Obicorp Sdn. 
  Bhd.

Malaysia 100% 100% Marketing and distribution of built-in 
kitchen appliances and white goods.

Kubiq Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100% 100% Selling, marketing and  distributing 
of cabinets in  kitchen and bedroom, 
knockdown furniture and  furniture parts, 
appliances and accessories.

Signature Interiors Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 80% - Interior decorators, consultants and 
planners of the arrangement, decoration 
and furnishing of commercial buildings, 
shops, hotels and residential interiors.
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5.	I nvestment In Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Name of Company
Country of 

Incorporation
Effective 

Equity Interest Principal Activities
2013 2012

Indirect subsidiaries:-

Signature Manufacturing 
  Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia 100% 100% Manufacturing of kitchen systems and 
wardrobe systems.

Signature Kitchen Sdn.
  Bhd.

Malaysia 100% 100% Retailing of kitchen systems, wardrobe 
systems and build-in kitchen appliances.

Fabriano Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100% 100% Investment holding.

Inspired Business Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 51% 51% Marketing and distribution of built-in 
kitchen appliances, white goods and 
bathroom   accessories.

Equal Strategy Pte. Ltd. The British 
Virgin lslands

100% 100% Investment holding.

Signature Kitchen (NZ) 
Limited * #

New Zealand - 100% Retailing of kitchen systems,  wardrobe 
systems and built-in kitchen appliances.

Signature Global
 Marketing Pte. Ltd. ^ 

The Republic 
of Singapore

90% 90% Marketing and distribution of kitchen 
systems, wardrobe systems and built-in 
kitchen appliances.

Fabriano Kitchen Cabinet 
(Foshan) Pte. Ltd. *

The People’s 
Republic of 

China

100% 100% Manufacturing, distribution, import and 
export of kitchen systems, wardrobe 
systems, built-in kitchen appliances, 
lighting and bathroom accessories.

*  -  Not audited by Messrs. Crowe Horwath.
^  -  Audited by an affiliate of Messrs. Crowe Horwath.
#  -  During the financial year, the subsidiary has been struck off from the New Zealand Company Register. 
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6.	P roperty, Plant And Equipment

Transfer To 

Non-Current 

Assets Held

At Written Depreciation For Sale At

1.7.2012 Additions Disposal Off Charge (Note 16) 30.6.2013

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

The Group

Net Book  Value

Buildings 15,742 - - - (244) (15,498) -

Leasehold land 25,128 - - - (285) (24,843) -

 Plant and machinery, 
tools and factory 
equipment 1,584 675 - (62) (318) - 1,879

Motor vehicles 2,313 1,974 (205) - (1,015) - 3,067

Furniture and fittings, 
renovation and 
signboards 1,433 438 - (18) (246) - 1,607

Showroom and office 
eqiupment 869 130 - (53) (271) - 675

Computers 144 60 - - (76) - 128

47,213 3,277 (205) (133) (2,455) (40,341) 7,356

At Written Depreciation At

1.7.2011 Additions Disposals Off Charge 30.6.2012

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

The Group

Net Book  Value

Buildings 16,295 - - - (553) 15,742

Leasehold land 10,071 15,298 - - (241) 25,128

Plant and machinery, tools and  
factory equipment 1,811 47 - (5) (269) 1,584

Motor vehicles 2,883 356 (33) (12) (881) 2,313

Furniture and fittings, renovation  
and signboards 1,098 582 (79) (3) (165) 1,433

Showroom and office eqiupment 770 385 (34) (2) (250) 869

Computers 67 132 (4) - (51) 144

32,995 16,800 (150) (22) (2,410) 47,213
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6.	P roperty, Plant And Equipment (Cont’d)

At Accumulated Net Book
Cost Depreciation Value

RM’000   RM’000   RM’000

The Group

At 30.6.2013
Plant and machinery, tools and factory equipment 3,233 (1,354) 1,879
Motor vehicles 6,166 (3,099) 3,067
Furniture and fittings, renovation and signboards 2,395 (788) 1,607
Showroom and office equipment 2,594 (1,919) 675
Computers 678 (550) 128

15,066 (7,710) 7,356

At 30.6.2012
Buildings 18,048 (2,306) 15,742
Leasehold land 26,780 (1,652) 25,128
Plant and machinery, tools and factory equipment 2,705 (1,121) 1,584
Motor vehicles 4,685 (2,372) 2,313
Furniture and fittings, renovation and signboards 1,956 (523) 1,433
Showroom and office equipment 2,471 (1,602) 869
Computers 619 (475) 144

57,264 (10,051) 47,213

	T he total net book value of the motor vehicles of the Group acquired under hire purchase terms at the end 
of the reporting period amounted to approximately RM1,768,000 (2012 - RM1,173,000).
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7.	I nvestment Properties

 The Group
 2013  2012

  RM’000   RM’000

At 1 July 15,445 14,956
Addition during the financial year 955 859
Fair value adjustment - 787
Disposal during the financial year - (1,157)

At 30 June 16,400 15,445

Investment properties comprise the following:-
Leasehold buildings:

- completed condominiums, at fair value 15,488 14,760
- condominiums under construction, at cost 912 685

At 30 June 16,400 15,445

	 Fair value adjustment relates to the difference between the carrying value and the fair value of the 
investment properties. The fair value is based on the prevailing market prices of the investment properties. 

8.	O ther Investments
	

 The Group
 2013  2012

  RM’000   RM’000

Unquoted shares outside Malaysia, at cost 321 321
Allowances for impairment losses (321) (321)

- -

	 On 21 February 2007, the Group acquired a 32% equity interest in Signature Kitchen India Private Limited, 
a company incorporated in India.

	T he Group does not consider this investment as an associate as the Group has no significant influence over 
its financial and operating policy decisions.
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9.	I nventories

 The Group
 2013  2012

  RM’000   RM’000

At Cost:-
Raw materials, parts and accessories 7,022 4,601
Work-in-progress 852 569
Goods-in-transit 485 56
Finished goods 5,263 5,805

13,622 11,031

At Net Realisable Value:-
Finished goods 577 551

14,199 11,582

10.	Am ounts Owing By/(To) Contract Customers

 The Group
 2013  2012

 RM’000  RM’000

Amount owing by:-
Contract costs incurred todate 67,895 33,188
Attributable profits 23,296 10,352

91,191 43,540
Progress billings (83,436) (39,533)

7,755 4,007

Amount owing to:-
Contract costs incurred todate 143,567 128,952
Attributable profits 62,253 59,898

205,820 188,850
Progress billings (240,163) (208,819)

(34,343) (19,969)
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11.	T rade Receivables 

 The Group
  2013   2012

   RM’000    RM’000

Trade receivables
Non-current 4,141 2,094

Current 53,562 44,211
Retention sum 6,329 8,337

59,891 52,548
Allowance for impairment losses (13,468) (13,659)

46,423 38,889

Allowance for impairment losses:-
At 1 July (13,659) (10,941)
Addition during the financial year (1,879) (4,632)
Write-back during the financial year 2,068 1,914
Write-off during the financial year 2 -

At 30 June (13,468) (13,659)

	T he Group’s normal trade credit terms range from 30 to 90 days. Other credit terms are assessed and 
approved on a case-by-case basis.

	 Included in the trade receivables is an amount of approximately RM6,299 (2012 - RM98,000) owing by companies 
in which a director of the Company and a close member of the family of the director have substantial financial 
interests. The amount owing is subject to normal trade credit terms and is to be settled in cash.

12.	O ther Receivables, Deposits And Prepayments

 The Group The Company
  2013   2012   2013   2012

  RM’000    RM’000   RM’000   RM’000

Other receivables 3,634 2,973 - -
Deposits 2,146 2,013 1 1
Prepayments 301 321 2 2

6,081 5,307 3 3
Less:
Allowance for impairment losses (28) - - -

6,053 5,307 3 3

	 Included in the other receivables of the Group in the previous financial year was an amount of approximately 
RM24,000 being advances granted to a foreign affiliated company which was written off in the current financial year.
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13.	Am ount Owing By Subsidiaries

	T he amount owing by the subsidiaries is non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on 
demand. The amount owing is to be settled in cash.

14.	S hort-Term Investments

 The Group The Company
  2013   2012   2013   2012

  RM’000    RM’000   RM’000   RM’000

Unit trust fund, quoted in Malaysia,  
at fair value 27,871 27,931 4,383 4,337

Market value of unit trust fund 
 at 30 June 27,871 27,931 4,383 4,337

	 Short-term investments are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss investments, 
measured at fair value.

15.	F ixed Deposit With A Licensed Bank

	T he fixed deposit at the end of the reporting period has been pledged to a licensed bank as security for 
banking facilities granted to the Group.

	T he fixed deposit amounted to approximately RM154,650 (2012 - RM150,000) at the end of the reporting 
period was held in trust by a director of the Company and a director of its subsidiary. 

	T he effective interest rate of the fixed deposit is 3.10% (2012 - 3.10%) per annum at the end of the reporting 
period. The fixed deposit has a maturity period of 12 months (2012 - 12 months).

16.	N on-current Assets Held For Sale

 The Group
  2013   2012

  RM’000   RM’000

Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note 6):
 - Leasehold land 24,843 -
 - Leasehold building 15,498 -

40,341 -

	 Signature Cabinet Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a conditional Sale and 
Purchase Agreement with Purple Heights Sdn. Bhd. to dispose of two properties for a total consideration 
of RM75,200,000 as disclosed in Note 46 in the financial statements and accordingly, the properties have 
been classified as assets held for sale. One of the property with a total net book value of RM24,531,000 has 
been charged to a licensed bank for banking facilities. 
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17.	S hare Capital

The Company
   2013  2012 2013   2012

Number Of Shares
’000 ’000 RM’000 RM’000

Ordinary Shares Of  RM0.50 Each

Authorised 200,000 200,000 100,000 100,000

Issued And Fully 120,000 120,000 60,000 60,000

18.	 Merger Deficit

	T he merger deficit related to the subsidiaries which were consolidated under the merger method of 
accounting.

	T he merger deficit arose from the difference between the carrying value of the investment and the nominal 
value of the shares of the subsidiaries upon consolidation using merger accounting principles.

19.	T reasury Shares

	 During the financial year, the Company purchased 1,055,000 of its issued ordinary shares from the open 
market at a price of RM0.85 per share. The total consideration paid for the purchase was RM919,634 
including transaction costs. The shares purchased are held as treasury shares in accordance with Section 
67A of the Companies Act 1965.

	 Of the total 120,000,000 issued and fully paid-up ordinary shares at the end of the reporting period, 
1,055,000 ordinary shares are held as treasury shares by the Company. None of the treasury shares were 
resold or cancelled during the financial year.

20.	R etained Profits

	 At the end of the reporting period, the Company will be able to distribute dividends out of its entire retained 
profits under the single tier tax system. 

21.	F oreign Exchange Translation Reserve

	T he foreign exchange translation arose from the translation of the financial statements of foreign 
subsidiaries and is not distributable by way of dividends.
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22.	 Deferred Taxation

 The Group
 2013  2012

  RM’000   RM’000

At 1July 2,430 2,418
Recognised in the profit or loss (Note 31) 118 12

At 30 June 2,548 2,430

	T he components of the deferred tax liabilities/(assets) are attributable to the following:-

 The Group
 2013  2012

  RM’000   RM’000

Deferred tax liabilities:-
Accelerated capital allowances over depreciation 325 1,057
Leasehold land and buildings at deemed cost 2,311 2,311
Others 37 4

2,673 3,372

Deferred tax assets:-
Allowance for impairment losses on receivables - (807)
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange (125) (125)
Others - (10)

(125) (942)

2,548 2,430

23.	L ong-Term Borrowings

 The Group
 2013  2012

  RM’000   RM’000

Hire purchase payables (Note 27) 1,255 551
Term loans (Note 28) 17,657 18,968

18,912 19,519
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24.	T rade Payables

	T he normal trade credit terms granted to the Group range from 30 to 90 days.

25.	O ther Payables And Accruals

 The Group  The Company
 2013  2012  2013  2012

 RM’000  RM’000  RM’000  RM’000

Deposits received from customers 9,496 4,162 - -
Other payables and accruals 3,051 4,911 81 107

12,547 9,073 81 107

26.	S hort-Term Borrowings

 The Group
 2013  2012

  RM’000   RM’000

Hire purchase payables (Note 27) 381 251
Term loans (Note 28) 2,207 2,144

2,588 2,395

27.	H ire Purchase Payables

 The Group
 2013  2012

 RM’000  RM’000

Minimum hire purchase payments:
- not later than one year 459 293
- later than one year but not later than five years 1,355 598
- later than five years 71 65

1,885 956
Future finance charges (249) (154)

Present value of hire purchase payables 1,636 802
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27.	H ire Purchase Payables (Cont’d)

 The Group
 2013  2012

  RM’000   RM’000

The net hire purchase payables are repayable as follows:
Current (Note 26):

- not later than one year 381 251

Non-current (Note 23):
- later than one year but not later than five years 1,192 499
- later than five years 63 52

1,255 551

1,636 802

	T he hire purchase payables bore effective interest rates ranging from 4.26% to 7.40% (2012 - 4.70% to 
6.71%) per annum at the end of the reporting period.

28.	T erm Loans

 The Group
 2013  2012

 RM’000  RM’000

Current (Note 26):
- repayable within one year 2,207 2,144

Non-current (Note 23):
- repayable between one and two years 2,426 2,155
- repayable between two and five years 7,319 6,694
- repayable after five years 7,912 10,119

17,657 18,968

19,864 21,112
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28.	T erm Loans (Cont’d)

Details of the repayment terms are as follows:-

Number of Date of The Group
Term Monthly Monthly Commencement Amount Outstanding
Loan Instalment Instalment of Repayment 2013 2012

RM RM’000 RM’000

1 22,763 120 1 July 2011 2,316 2,548
2 18,455 120 1 July 2011 1,541 1,674
3 18,455 120 1 July 2011 1,539 1,694
4 20,346 120 5 September 2011 1,663 1,861
5 4,956 120 30 June 2011 491 268
6 116,667 120 23 November 2011 11,667 13,0667
7 19,362 60 1 April 2014 647 -

	
	T he term loans bore effective interest rates ranging from 4.40% to 4.80% (2012 - 4.4% to 7.4%) per annum 

at the end of the reporting period.

	T he term loans are secured by:-

(a)	 a first legal charge over certain short leasehold land and buildings of a subsidiary;

(b)	 a first legal charge over certain investment properties of a subsidiary;

(c)	 a corporate guarantee of the Company; and

(d)	 a joint and several guarantee of certain directors of the Company.

	T erm Loan 7 is repayable in 60 monthly instalments of RM19,362 each. The repayment of Term Loan 7 will 
commence upon the full drawdown of the term loan.

29.	R evenue

 The Group  The Company
 2013  2012  2013  2012

 RM’000  RM’000  RM’000  RM’000

Sale of goods 45,184 50,015 - -
Contract revenue 75,664 46,750 - -
Dividend income from subsidiaries - - - 2,000
Management fee from subsidiaries - - 1,878 1,897

120,848 96,765 1,878 3,897
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30.	P rofit/(Loss) Before Taxation

 The Group The Company
 2013  2012  2013  2012

 RM’000  RM’000  RM’000  RM’000

Profit before taxation is arrived at after 
charging/(crediting):

Allowance for impairment losses on:
- trade receivables 1,879 4,632 - -
- other receivables 28 - - -

Audit fee:
- current financial year 110 108 20 20
- underprovision in the previous

 financial year 6 12 2 2
Bad debts written off 24 55 - -
Depreciation of property, plant  

and equipment 2,455 2,410 - -
Directors’ fee 511 186 150 186
Directors’ non-fee emoluments 1,216 1,036 1,139 1,036
Direct operating expenses of  

investment properties:
- revenue generating during  

the financial year 39 38 - -
- non-revenue generating during  

the financial year 18 38 - -
Inventories written down 591 76 - -
Interest expense:

- hire purchase 57 54 - -
- term loans 963 838 - -

Loss on disposal of investment properties - 7 - -
Operating lease expenses - 105 - -
Plant and equipment written off 133 22 - -
Rental of motor vehicle - 97 - -
Rental of plant and machinery 20 26 - -
Rental of premises 863 904 - -
Staff costs:

- salaries, wages, bonuses and  allowance 14,055 12,113 797 803
- defined contribution plan 1,382 1,238 105 114
- other benefits 900 1,091 52 40

Deposit forfeited - (6) - -
Dividend income from short-term investments (195) (183) (103) (101)
Fair value adjustment on  

investment properties - (787) - -
Fair value gain on short-term investments (670) (282) (43) (12)
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30.	P rofit/(Loss) Before Taxation (Cont’d)

 The Group The Company
 2013  2012  2013  2012

 RM’000  RM’000  RM’000  RM’000

Gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary (222) - - -
Government grant - (13) - -
Loss/(Gain) on foreign exchange:  

- realised 20 (39) - -
- unrealised (374) (600) - -

(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property,  
plant and equipment (64) 93 - -

Loss/(Gain) on disposal of short-term 
investment 25 (16) - -

Interest income (56) (212) (1) (6)
Rebates received/receivable  

from suppliers (86) (26) - -
Rental income - (3) - -
Rental income from investment properties (185) (45) - -
Sub-rental income (3) - - -
Write-back of allowance for impairment  

losses on receivables (2,068) (1,914) - -

31.	I ncome Tax Expense

 The Group The Company
  2013   2012   2013   2012

  RM’000   RM’000   RM’000   RM’000

Current tax:
- for the current financial year 3,653 3,462 - 295
- (over)/underprovision in the   

previous financial year (33) 133 (295) 430

3,620 3,595 (295) 725

Deferred tax (Note 22):
- relating to originating and recognition  

of temporary differences 81 12 - -
- underprovision in the previous 

financial year 37 - - -

118 12 - -

3,738 3,607 (295) 725
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31.	I ncome Tax Expense (Cont’d)

	 During the current financial year, the statutory tax rate is 25%.

	T axation for other jurisdictions are calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. 

	 A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to the profit/(loss) before taxation at the statutory tax rate 
to income tax expense at the effective tax rate of the Group and of the Company is as follows:-

 The Group The Company
  2013   2012   2013   2012

  RM’000   RM’000   RM’000   RM’000

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 8,789 9,186 (504) 1,569

Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% 2,197 2,297 (126) 392

Tax effects of:-
Non-deductible expenses 1,362 1,325 16 431
Non-taxable gains (275) (439) - (528)
Deferred tax assets not recognised 

during the financial year 481 332 110 -
Utilisation of deferred tax assets  

not recognised in the previous 
financial year (41) (41) - -

(Over)/Underprovision in the  
previous financial year:
- current tax (33) 133 (295) 430
- deferred tax 37 - - -

Differential in tax rates 10 - - -

Income tax expense for the 
 financial year 3,738 3,607 (295) 725

	 No deferred tax asset is recognised at the end of the reporting period for the following items:-

 The Group
 2013  2012

  RM’000   RM’000

Unabsorbed capital allowances 6 2
Unutilised tax losses 3,149 1,539
Allowance for impairment losses on receivables 7,686 7,584
Excess of capital allowances over depreciation 1,153 1,106

11,994 10,231
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32.	E arnings Per Share

	 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit after tax attributable to the owners of the 
Company for the financial year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue excluding 
treasury shares during the financial year.

The Group
  2013   2012

Profit after tax attributable to the owners of the   
Company for the financial year (RM’000) 4,579 5,332

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (‘000):-
Issued ordinary shares at 1 July 120,000 120,000
Effect of treasury shares held (497) -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 30 June 119,503 120,000

Basic earnings per share (sen) 3.8 4.4

	T he fully diluted earnings per share for the Group is not presented as there were no potential dilutive 
ordinary shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period. 

33.	 Dividend

	  The Group
 2013  2012

 RM’000  RM’000

Paid:

In respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2011:
- a first and final single tier dividend of 2 sen per ordinary share - 2,400

In respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2012:
- a first and final single tier dividend of 1.5 sen per ordinary share 1,800 -

1,800 2,400

	 At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final single tier dividend of 1.5 sen per ordinary share 
amounting to RM1,800,000 in respect of the current financial year will be proposed for shareholders’ 
approval. The financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such 
dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be accounted for as a liability in the financial year ending 30 
June 2014.
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34.	P urchase Of Property, Plant And Equipment

 The Group
   2013    2012

   RM’000    RM’000

Cost of property, plant and equipment purchased 3,277 16,800
Amount financed through hire purchase (1,519) (130)

Cash disbursed for purchase of property, plant and equipment 1,758 16,670

35.	A cquisition Of A Subsidiary

	 During the financial year, the Group subscribed for 80 ordinary shares of RM1 each at par representing a 
80% equity interest in Signature Interiors Sdn. Bhd. (“SISB”) for a total cash consideration of RM80.

36.	 Deconsolidation Of A Subsidiary

	 During the current financial year, the Company deconsolidated Signature (NZ) Limited from the Group 
accordingly. The effects of the deconsolidation were as follows:-

The Group
 2013  2012

 RM’000  RM’000

Current assets 6 -
Current liabilities (228) -

Fair value of net assets deconsolidated (222) -

Gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary (222) -

Cash and bank balances of the subsidiary deconsolidated - -

Net cash inflow on deconsolidation of a subsidiary - -
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37.	C ash And Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:-

The Group The Company
 2013  2012  2013   2012

  RM’000   RM’000   RM’000   RM’000

Fixed deposits with licensed  
banks (Note 15) 155 150 - -

Cash and bank balances 19,623 15,715 40 199

19,778 15,865 40 199

38.	S ignificant Related Party Disclosures

38.1	 Identities of related parties

	T he Group and the Company have related party relationships with:-

(a)	 its subsidiaries;

(b)	 the directors who are the key management personnel; and

(c)	 entities controlled by the directors and by the close members of the family of the directors.

38.2	 In addition to the information detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group and the 
Company carried out the following transactions with its related parties during the financial year:-

	

 The Group The Company
 2013  2012  2013  2012

 RM’000  RM’000  RM’000  RM’000

(a) Subsidiaries
Dividend income - - - 2,000
Management fee - - 1,878 1,897

(b) Entities controlled by a 
director/person connected 
to a director

 Deposit received for a project 5,160 - -  -

(c) Key management personnel 
(including directors)

Short-term employee 
benefits 2,162 2,061 2,162 2,061



117

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013 (Cont’d)

SIGNATURE INTERNATIONAL BERHAD (754118-K)
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

39.	 Directors’ Remuneration

	T he aggregate amount of emoluments received and receivable by the directors of the Group and the 
Company during the financial year are as follows:-

 The Group The Company
 2013  2012  2013  2012

 RM’000  RM’000  RM’000  RM’000

Executive directors:
- salaries and other emoluments 1,015 933 1,015 933
- defined contribution plans 123 103 123 103

Non-executive directors:
- fees 150 186 150 186

1,288 1,222 1,288 1,222

	 Details of directors’ emoluments of the Group and the Company received/receivable for the financial year 
in bands of RM50,000 are as follows:-

The Group The Company

 2013  2012  2013  2012

Executive directors:
- RM500,001 - RM550,000 2 2 2 2

Non-executive directors:
- Below RM50,000 4 5 4 5

6 7 6 7

40.	C apital Commitments

40.1	C apital Commitments

  The Group
 2013  2012

 RM’000  RM’000

Approved but not contracted for:-
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 2,945 -

Approved and contracted for:-
Investment properties 386 1,262
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40.	C apital Commitments (Cont’d)

40.2	L ease Commitments
		
	T he Group has various operating lease agreements for office premises and other facilities. Most leases 

contain renewable options. Lease terms do not contain restrictions on the Group’s activities concerning 
dividends, additional debt or further leasing.

 The Group
 2013  2012

  RM’000  RM’000

Future minimum lease payments:-
Not later than 1 year 458 -
Later than 1 year and not later than five years 598 -

1,056 -

41.	C ontingent Liabilities

The Group The Company
 2013  2012  2013  2012

 RM’000  RM’000  RM’000  RM’000

Unsecured:-

Corporate guarantee given to  
licensed banks for credit  
facilities granted to subsidiaries - - 19,373 20,843

Performance guarantee extended  
by subsidiaries to third parties 13,021 7,781 - -

13,021 7,781 19,373 20,843
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42.	O perating Segments

	 Operating segments are prepared in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Group 
Executive Directors as its Group operating decision makers in order to allocate resources to segments and 
to assess their performance. For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based 
on their products and services provided.

The Group is organised into 4 main business segments as follows:-

(i)	 Design, Manufacture and Retail of Kitchen and Wardrobe Systems - involved in the designing, 
manufacturing and retailing of Group core business as in kitchen cabinets and wardrobe from point 
of design to delivery to the projects, retailers and end consumers.

(ii)	M arketing and Distribution of White Goods - involved in the marketing and distribution of white goods 
and home appliances (eg. Washing machines, hood, hob, oven, fridge and etc) to projects, retailers 
and end consumers.

(iii)	M anufacture of Glass and Aluminium Products - involved in supplying and distribution of glass and 
aluminium products to projects and end consumers.

(iv)	 Others - consist of dormant and investment holding companies which are non-core business and for 
investment holding purposes.

	T he Group Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating segments based on the operating 
profit or loss which is measured on the same basis as those disclosed in the consolidated financial 
statements. 

	 Group financing (including finance costs) and income taxes are managed on a group basis and are not 
allocated to operating segments.

	 Assets, liabilities and expenses which are common and cannot be meaningfully allocated to the operating 
segments are presented under unallocated items. Unallocated items comprise mainly investments and 
related income, loans and borrowings and related expenses, corporate assets (primary the Company’s 
headquarters) and head office expenses.
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42.	O perating Segments (Cont’d)

42.1	B usiness Segments

Design
Manufacture Marketing Manufacture
And Retail Of And Of Glass
Kitchen And Distribution And

Wardrobe Of White Aluminium
Systems  Goods Products  Others Eliminations The Group

The Group   RM’000   RM’000   RM’000 RM’000   RM’000   RM’000

2013

REVENUE:
External revenue 95,130 2,557 23,161 - - 120,848
Inter-segment revenue 30,243 7,346 930 1,878 (40,397) -

Total revenue 125,373 9,903 24,091 1,878 (40,397) 120,848

RESULTS
Segment results 8,391 680 1,788 (515) -   10,344
Finance costs (1,498) (27) (30) -  -  (1,555)

Profit from ordinary 
activities before taxation 6,894 652 1,758 (515) -   8,789

Income tax expense (3,738)

Profit from ordinary 
activities after taxation 5,051

Non-controlling interests (472)

Net profit attributable to 
owners of the Company 4,579

OTHER INFORMATION
Segment assets 169,707 10,184 22,443 64,060 (76,077) 190,317
Unallocated assets 1,652

191,969

Segment liabilities 102,902 2,851 16,367 7,360 (46,189) 83,291
Unallocated liabilities 2,978

86,269

Depreciation 2,179 30 246 - - 2,455
Capital expenditure:

 - Property, plant and 
equipment 2,945 9 323 - - 3,277
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42.	O perating Segments (Cont’d)

42.1	B usiness Segments (Cont’d)

Design
Manufacture Marketing Manufacture
And Retail Of And Of Glass
Kitchen And Distribution And

Wardrobe Of White Aluminium
Systems  Goods Products  Others Eliminations The Group

The Group  RM’000  RM’000  RM’000 RM’000  RM’000  RM’000

2012

REVENUE:
External revenue 79,364 3,485 13,916 - - 96,765
Inter-segment revenue 27,594 5,719 1,195 3,897 (38,405) -

Total revenue 106,958 9,204 15,111 3,897 (38,405) 96,765

RESULTS
Segment results 7,943 1,633 1,228 1,542 (1,687) 10,659
Finance costs (1,416) (24) (32) (1) - (1,473)

Profit from ordinary 
activities before taxation 6,527 1,609 1,196 1,541 (1,687) 9,186

Income tax expense (2,157) (442) (283) (725) - (3,607)

Profit from ordinary 
activities after taxation 4,370 1,167 913 816 (1,687) 5,579

Non-controlling interests 118 - (365) - - (247)

Net profit attributable to 
owners of the Company 4,488 1,167 548 816 (1,687) 5,332

OTHER INFORMATION
Segment assets 152,710 10,114 13,556 65,812 (73,859) 168,333
Unallocated assets 1,843

170,176

Segment liabilities 95,667 3,100 8,949 5,287 (48,599) 64,404
Unallocated liabilities 2,540

66,944

Depreciation 2,147 14 249 - - 2,410
Capital expenditure:

- Property, plant and 
equipment 16,390 180 230 - - 16,800

Fair value adjustment for 
investment properties 787 - - - - 787
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42.	O perating Segments (Cont’d)

42.2	 Geographical Segments

Malaysia Export The Group
 RM’000  RM’000  RM’000

The Group

2013

Revenue 118,499 2,349 120,848

2012

Revenue 91,406 5,359 96,765

42.3	 Major Customers
	

	 Revenue from a major customer, which constituted more than 10% of the revenue of the Group, 
amounting to approximately RM11,426,000 (2012 - RM12,449,000) relate to sales of design manufacture 
and retail of kitchen and wardrobe systems.

43.	F oreign Exchange Rates

	T he applicable closing foreign exchange rates used (expressed on the basis of one unit of foreign currency 
to RM equivalent) for the translation of foreign currency balances at the end of the reporting period are as 
follows:-

The Group
2013 2012

RM RM

Euro 4.12 4.01
Indian Rupee - 0.05
New Zealand Dollar 2.47 2.49
Singapore Dollar 2.50 2.50
Thai Baht 0.10 0.09
United Arab Emirates Dirham 0.86 0.84
United States Dollar 3.16 3.16
Brunei Dollar 2.50 2.46
Chinese Renminbi 0.51 0.49
Indonesian Rupiah - 0.0003
Pakistani Rupee 0.03 0.03
Philippine Peso 0.07 0.07
Vietnamese Dong 0.0001 0.0001
Pound Sterling 4.82 -
Japanese Yen 0.03 -



123

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013 (Cont’d)

SIGNATURE INTERNATIONAL BERHAD (754118-K)
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

44.	F inancial Instruments 

	T he Group’s activities are exposed to a variety of market risks (including foreign currency risk, interest 
rate risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall financial risk management 
policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects 
on the Group’s financial performance. 

44.1	F inancial Risk Management Policies

The Group’s policies in respect of the major areas of treasury activity are as follows:-

Market Risks

(i)	 Foreign Currency Risk 

	T he Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions and balances that are denominated 
in currencies other than Ringgit Malaysia. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily 
United States Dollar and Singapore Dollar. Foreign currency risk is monitored closely on an 
ongoing basis to ensure that the net exposure is at an acceptable level. 

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency is as follows:-

United

United Arab New

States Singapore Emirates Zealand Ringgit

Dollar Dollar dirham Dollar Euro Others Malaysia Total

The Group RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2013

Financial assets

Trade receivables 311 - - - 40 104 50,109 50,564

Other receivables and deposits 292 41 - - 281 282 5,157 6,053

Short-term investments - - - - - - 27,871 27,871

Fixed deposit with a  
licensed bank - - - - - - 155 155

Cash and bank balances 5,957 466 20 122 54 1,170 11,834 19,623

6,560 507 20 122 375 1,556 95,126 104,266

2013

Financial liabilities

Trade payables 352 2 15 - 1,467 45 13,020 14,901

Other payables and accruals 277 32 - - 44 291 11,903 12,547

Hire purchase payables - - - - - - 1,636 1,636

Term loans - - - - - - 19,864 19,864

629 34 15 - 1,511 336 46,423 48,948
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44.	F inancial Instruments (Cont’d)
	

44.1	F inancial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)

(a)	 Market Risks (Cont’d)

Foreign Currency Risk (Cont’d)

United

United Arab New

States Singapore Emirates Zealand Ringgit

Dollar Dollar Dirham Dollar Euro Others Malaysia Total

The Group RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2013

Net financial (liabilities)/assets 5,931 473 5 122 (1,136) 1,220 48,703 55,318

Less: Net financial (assets)/
liabilities denominated in the 
respective entities functional 
currencies - - - - - - (48,703) (48,703)

Currency exposure 5,931 473 5 122 (1,136) 1,220 - 6,615

2012

Financial assets

Trade receivables 1,166 - 29 1 - - 39,787 40,983

Other receivables and deposits - 75 - 2 199 - 4,845 5,121

Short-term investments - - - - - - 27,931 27,931

Fixed deposit with a  
licensed bank - - - - - - 150 150

Cash and bank  balances 3,239 477 23 121 42 552 11,261 15,715

4,405 552 52 124 241 552 83,974 89,900

2012

Financial liabilities

Trade payables - - 15 14 414 - 13,006 13,449

Other payables and accruals 192 38 - - - 77 8,766 9,073

Hire purchase payables - - - - - - 802 802

Term loans - - - - - - 21,112 21,112

192 38 15 14 414 77 43,686 44,436

2012

Net financial assets/(liabilities) 4,213 514 37 110 (173) 475 40,288 45,464

Less: Net financial (assets)/
liabilities denominated in the 
respective entities functional 
currencies - (156) - 10 - (468) (40,288) (40,902)

Currency exposure 4,213 358 37 120 (173) 7 - 4,562
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44.	F inancial Instruments (Cont’d)
	

44.1	F inancial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)

(a)	 Market Risk (Cont’d)

(i)	 Foreign Currency Risk (Cont’d)

Foreign currency risk sensitivity analysis

The Group
2013 2012

Increase/
(Decrease)

Increase/
(Decrease)

RM’000 RM’000

Effects on profit after taxation
United States Dollar:

 - strengthened by 5% 222 158
 - weakened by 5% (222) (158)

Singapore Dollar:
 - strengthened by 5% 17 13
 - weakened by 5% (17) (13)

United Arab Emirates Dirham:
 - strengthened by 5% - 1
 - weakened by 5% - (1)

New Zealand Dollar:
 - strengthened by 5% 5 5
 - weakened by 5% (5) (5)

Euro:
 - strengthened by 5% (43) (6)
 - weakened by 5% 43 6

United States Dollar:
 - strengthened by 5% 222 158
 - weakened by 5% (222) (158)

Singapore Dollar:
 - strengthened by 5% 17 13
 - weakened by 5% (17) (13)
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44.	F inancial Instruments (Cont’d)
	

44.1	F inancial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)

(a)	 Market Risk (Cont’d)

(i)	 Foreign Currency Risk (Cont’d)

Foreign currency risk sensitivity analysis (Cont’d)

The Group
2013 2012

Increase/
(Decrease)

Increase/
(Decrease)

RM’000 RM’000

United Arab Emirates Dirham:
 - strengthened by 5% - 1
 - weakened by 5% - (1)

New Zealand Dollar:
 - strengthened by 5% 5 5
 - weakened by 5% 5 (5)

Euro:
 - strengthened by 5% (43) (6)
 - weakened by 5% 43 6

	

(ii)	 Interest Rate Risk  

	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to interest 
rate risk arises mainly from interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities. The Group’s 
policy is to obtain the most favourable interest rates available. Any surplus funds of the 
Group will be placed with licensed financial institutions to generate interest income.

	 Information relating to the Group’s exposure to the interest rate risk of the financial 
liabilities is disclosed in Note 44.1(c) to the financial statements.
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44.	F inancial Instruments (Cont’d)
	

44.1	F inancial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)

(a)	 Market Risk (Cont’d)

(ii)	 Interest Rate Risk (Cont’d)

	T he interest rate risk profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments based 
on the carrying amount as at the end of the reporting period was:

The Group
2013 2012

RM’000 RM’000

Fixed rate instruments
Fixed deposit with a licensed bank 155 150
Hire purchase payables (1,636) (802)

(1,481) (652)

Floating rate instruments
Term loans (19,864) (21,112)

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis 

	 A 100 basis points strengthening in the interest rate as at the end of the reporting period 
would have decreased profit after taxation by RM149,000 (2012: RM158,000). A 100 basis 
points weakening would have had an equal but opposite effect on the profit after taxation. 
This assumes that all other variables remain constant.

(iii)	 Equity Price Risk

	T he Group’s principal exposure to equity price risk arises mainly from changes in market 
prices of unit trust funds. Equity price risk is monitored closely and managed to an 
acceptable level.
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44.	F inancial Instruments (Cont’d)
	

44.1	F inancial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)

(a)	 Market Risk (Cont’d)

(iii)	 Equity Price Risk (Cont’d)

Equity price risk sensitivity analysis 

	T he following table details the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change in 
the prices of the quoted investments as at the end of the reporting period, with all other 
variables held constant:-

The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Effects on profit after 
taxation

Increase of 5% 1,045 1,047 164 163
Decrease of 5% (1,045) (1,047) (164) (163)

Effect on equity
Increase of 5% 1,045 1,047 164 163
Decrease of 5% (1,045) (1,047) (164) (163)

(b)	C redit Risk

	T he Group’s exposure to credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, arises mainly from 
trade and other receivables. The Group manages its exposure to credit risk by the application 
of credit approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures on an ongoing basis. For other 
financial assets (including quoted investments, cash and bank balances and derivatives), the 
Group minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

	T he Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred 
losses in respect of the trade and other receivables as appropriate. The main components of this 
allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a 
collective loss component established for groups of similar assets in respect of losses that have 
been incurred but not yet identified. Impairment is estimated by management based on prior 
experience and the current economic environment.

(i)	 Credit risk concentration profile

	T he Group’s major concentration of credit risk relates to the amount owing by a customer 
which constituted approximately 19% of its trade receivables as at the end of the reporting 
period.  

(ii)	 Exposure to credit risk

	 As the Group does not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk is 
represented by the carrying amount of the financial assets as at the end of the reporting 
period.
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44.	F inancial Instruments (Cont’d)
	

44.1	F inancial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)

(b)	C redit Risk (Cont’d)

(ii)	 Exposure to credit risk (Cont’d)

	T he exposure of credit risk for trade receivables by geographical region is as follows:-

The Group
2013 2012

RM’000 RM’000

China 104 -
India 14 205
Indonesia 142 90
Lebanon - 2
Mauritius 11 11
United Arab Emirates - 29
Vietnam 145 429
Malaysia 50,148 40,217

50,564 40,983

(iii)	 Ageing analysis

	T he ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables at the end of reporting period is as 
follows:-

Gross Individual Collective Carrying
Amount Impairment Impairment Value

The Group RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2013

Not past due 24,099 - - 24,099

Past due:
- less than 3 months 10,647 - - 10,647
- 3 to 6 months 4,611 - - 4,611
- over 6 months 24,675 (13,468) - 11,207

64,032 (13,468) - 50,564
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44.	F inancial Instruments (Cont’d)
	

44.1	F inancial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)

(b)	C redit Risk (Cont’d)

(iii)	 Ageing analysis (Cont’d)

Gross Individual Collective Carrying
Amount Impairment Impairment Value

The Group RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2012

Not past due 13,000 - - 13,000

Past due:
- less than 3 months 4,724 - - 4,724
- 3 to 6 months 6,851 - - 6,851
- over 6 months 30,067 (12,184) (1,475) 16,408

54,642 (12,184) (1,475) 40,983

	 At the end of the reporting period, trade receivables that are individually impaired were 
those in significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These receivables 
are not secured by any collateral or credit enhancement. 

	T he collective impairment allowance is determined based on estimated irrecoverable 
amounts from the sale of goods, determined by reference to past default experience.

	 Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired

	T he Group believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these trade 
receivables. They are substantially companies with good collection track record and no 
recent history of default. 

	 Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

	 A significant portion of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are regular 
customers that have been transacting with the Group. The Group uses ageing analysis 
to monitor the credit quality of the trade receivables. Any receivables having significant 
balances past due or more than 90 days, which are deemed to have higher credit risk, are 
monitored individually.

(c)	L iquidity Risk

	 Liquidity risk arises mainly from general funding and business activities. The Group practises 
prudent risk management by maintaining sufficient cash balances and the availability of funding 
through certain committed credit facilities.
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44.	F inancial Instruments (Cont’d)

44.1	F inancial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)

(c)	L iquidity Risk (Cont’d)

	 The following table sets out the maturity profile of the financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting 
period based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using 
contractual rates or, if floating, based on the rates at the end of the reporting period):-

Weighted
Average Contractual Over

Effective Carrying Undiscounted Within 1 - 5 5
Rate Amount Cash Flows 1 Year Years Years

The Group % RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2013

Trade payables - 14,901 14,901 14,901 - -
Other payables
 and accruals - 12,547 12,547 12,547 - -
Hire purchase
 payables 5.61 1,636 1,886 459 1,356 71
Term loans 4.55 19,864 23,877 3,093 12,191 8,593

48,948 53,211 31,000 13,547 8,664

2012

Trade payables - 13,449 13,449 13,449 - -
Other payables
 and accruals - 9,073 9,073 9,073 - -
Hire purchase
 payables 5.61 802 957 293 598 66
Term loans 4.55 21,112 25,929 3,060 11,624 11,245

44,436 49,408 25,875 12,222 11,311

The Company

2013

Other payables   
and accruals 81 81 81 - -

2012

 Other payables  
and accruals 107 107 107 - -
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44.	F inancial Instruments (Cont’d)

44.1	F inancial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)

(d)	C apital Risk Management 

	T he Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group will be able to maintain 
an optimal capital structure so as to support their businesses and maximise shareholders value. 
To achieve this objective, the Group may make adjustments to the capital structure in view of 
changes in economic conditions, such as adjusting the amount of dividend payment, returning 
of capital to shareholders or issuing new shares.

	T he Group manages its capital based on debt-to-equity ratio. The Group’s strategies were 
unchanged from the previous financial year. The debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as net debt 
divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as borrowings plus trade and other payables less 
cash and cash equivalents.

	T he debt-equity ratio of the Group as at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

The Group
2013 2012

RM’000 RM’000

Trade payables 14,901 13,449
Other payables and accruals 12,547 9,073
Hire purchase payables 1,636 802
Term loans 19,864 21,112

48,948 44,436
Less: Fixed deposits with licensed banks (155) (150)
Less: Cash and bank balances (19,623) (15,715)

Net debt 29,170 28,571

Total equity 103,324 103,232

Debt-to-equity ratio 0.28 0.28

	 Under the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Practice Note No. 17/2005, the Company is required 
to maintain a consolidated shareholders’ equity (total equity attributable to owners of the 
Company) equal to or not less than the 25% of the issued and paid-up share capital (excluding 
treasury shares) and such shareholders’ equity is not less than RM40 million. The Company has 
complied with this requirement.
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44.	F inancial Instruments (Cont’d)

44.1	F inancial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)

(e)	C lassification of Financial Instruments

The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Financial assets

Loans and receivables 
financial assets 

Trade receivables 50,564 40,983 - -
 Other receivables and 

deposits 5,742 4,986 3 3
 Amount owing by 

subsidiaries - - 25,131 28,357
Fixed deposit with a  

licensed bank 155 150 - -
Cash and bank balances 19,623 15,715 40 199

76,084 61,834 25,174 28,559
Fair value through profit   

and loss
Short-term investments 27,871 27,931 4,383 4,337

103,955 89,765 29,557 32,896

Financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities
Trade payables 14,901 13,449 - -
Other payables and accruals 12,547 9,073 81 107
Hire purchase payables 1,636 802 - -
Term loans 19,864 21,112 - -

48,948 44,436 81 107
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44.	F inancial Instruments (Cont’d)

44.1	F inancial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)

(f)	F air Values of Financial Instruments

	T he carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities reported in the financial 
statements approximated their fair values except for following:-

2013 2012
Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

The Group

Hire purchase payables 1,636 1,705 802 1,030

	T he following summarises the methods used to determine the fair values of the financial 
instruments:-

(i)	T he financial assets and financial liabilities maturing within the next 12 months 
approximated their fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of the financial 
instruments.

(ii)	T he fair value hire purchase payables is determined by discounting the relevant cash flows 
using current interest rates for similar instruments as at the end of the reporting period.

(iii)	T he carrying amounts of the term loans approximated their fair values as these instruments 
bear interest at variable rates.

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, where applicable, are as follows:-

The Group
2013 2012

% %

Hire purchase payables 4.26 - 7.40 4.70 - 6.71

(g)	F air Value Hierarchy

	T he fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are analysed into level 1 to 3 as follows:-
 
	 Level 1:    �Fair value measurements derive from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 

identical assets or liabilities.

	 Level 2:    �Fair value measurements derive from inputs other than quoted prices included within 
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

	 Level 3:    �Fair value measurements derive from valuation techniques that include inputs for the 
asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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44.	F inancial Instruments (Cont’d)

44.1	F inancial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)

(g)	F air Value Hierarchy (Cont’d)

	 As at the end of the financial period, the Group’s financial instruments carried at fair values are 
analysed below:-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2013 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

The Group

Financial assets
Short-term investments:

- equity fund unit trusts  
in Malaysia 27,871 - - 27,871

The Company

Financial assets
Short-term investments:

- equity fund unit trusts  
in Malaysia 4,383 - - 4,383

2012

The Group

Financial assets
Short-term investments:

- equity fund unit trusts  
in Malaysia 27,931 - - 27,931

The Company

Financial assets
Short-term investments:

- equity fund unit trusts  
in Malaysia 4,337 - - 4,337
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45.	S ignificant Events During The Financial Year

(a)	 On 22 April 2013, the Group subscribed for 80 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each representing a 80% 
equity interest in Signature Interiors Sdn. Bhd., for a cash consideration of RM80; and

(b)	 On 15 January 2013, the Group deconsolidated one of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Signature Kitchen 
(NZ) Limited (“SKNZ”) which has been struck off from the New Zealand Company Register. 

46. 	S ignificant Events Occurring After The Reporting Period

(a)	 On 15 July 2013, Signature Cabinet Sdn. Bhd. (“SCSB”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group 
entered into a conditional Sale and Purchase Agreement with Purple Heights Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Meda Inc Berhad, for the proposed disposal by SCSB of its buildings and leasehold 
land for a total consideration of RM75,200,000 to be settled partly in cash and part payment in kind.

	T he proposed disposal is pending approval from the Company’s shareholders and the transaction has 
not been completed at the date of this report.

(b)	 On 23 September 2013, SCSB entered into two Sale and Purchase Agreements with HSB Development 
Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSC Healthcare Sdn. Bhd. (“HSC Healthcare”), a major 
shareholder of the Company to purchase two units of service apartments for a total cash consideration 
of approximately RM3.7 million.

47. 	T ransition to the MFRS Framework

	 As stated in Note 3.1 to the financial statements, these are the first financial statements of the Group 
prepared in accordance with MFRSs. The accounting policies in Note 4 to the financial statements have 
been applied to all financial information covered under this set of financial statements. 

	 In preparing the opening MFRS statements of financial position at 1 July 2011 (date of transition), the 
Group have adjusted amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with 
FRSs. The financial impacts on the transition are as below:-

Reconciliation of financial position
	

 1.7.2011   30.6.2012 

FRSs
Transition 

Effects MFRSs FRSs
Transition 

Effects MFRSs
The Group Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Property, plant and equipment (a) 25,146 7,849 32,995 47,213 - 47,213
Deferred taxation (a) 456 1,962 2,418 2,430 - 2,430
Revaluation reserve (a) 1,309 (1,309) - 7,196 (7,196) -
Retained profits (a), (b) 60,106 6,915 67,021 63,038 6,915 69,953
Exchange translation reserve (b) (281) 281 - (339) 281 (58)
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47. 	T ransition to the MFRS Framework (Cont’d)

Reconciliation of PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FRSs
Transition

 Effects MFRSs
The Group Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Profit after taxation 5,579 - 5,579

Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
- Foreign currency translation (58) - (58)
- Revaluation of property, plantand equipment (a) 5,887 (5,887) -

Total comprehensive income for  
the financial year 11,408 (5,887) 5,521

Total comprehensive income attributable to:-
Owners of the Company (a) 11,161 (5,887) 5,274
Non-controlling interests 247 - 247

11,408 (5,887) 5,521

Reconciliation of cash flows

There are no material differences between the statements of cash flows presented under FRSs and MFRSs.

Notes to Reconciliations

(a)	 Property, plant and equipment - Deemed Cost Exemption

	 Under FRSs, the Group measured its long leasehold land and buildings at valuation. The last valuation 
was carried out during the financial year ended 30 June 2011 by using the open market value basis 
based on a valuation carried out by an independent firm of professional valuers. Upon transition 
to MFRSs, the Group had decided to measure the long leasehold land and buildings using the cost 
model under MFRS 116 Property, Plant and Equipment. Thus, at the date of transition to MFRSs, the 
optional exemption in MFRS 1 was applied to regard the revalued amounts of the long leasehold land 
and buildings as deemed cost under MFRSs as these revalued amounts were broadly comparable to 
fair value at that date. The revaluation surplus of RM7,196,269 as at 1 July 2011 was transferred to 
retained profits.

	T here was no impact to the carrying value of this asset. However, the revaluation reserve at 1 July 
2011 and 30 June 2012 were transferred to retained profits.

(b)	 Exchange translation reserve

	 Upon transition to MFRSs, the Group elected to reclassify foreign exchange translation reserve to 
retained profits. The cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations are reset to zero at 
1 July 2011 under MFRSs.
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48.	SUPPLE MENTARY INFORMATION - DISCLOSURE OF REALISED AND UNREALISED PROFITS

	T he breakdown of the retained profits/(accumulated losses) of the Group and of the Company as at the end 
of the reporting period into realised and unrealised profits/(losses) are presented in accordance with the 
directive issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and prepared in accordance with Guidance on Special 
Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure 
Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute 
of Accountants, as follows:-

The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Total retained profits
- realised 67,229 60,711 1,178 3,199

- unrealised (5,744) 2,857 - (12)

61,485 63,568 1,178 3,187
Consolidation adjustment 10,803 6,385 - -

At 30 June 72,288 69,953 1,178 3,187
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Location Description / Use Tenure

Approximate 
age of 

buildings at 30 
June 2013

Total Area 
(square feet)

Carrying 
Amount at 30 

June 2013
(RM’000)

Year of 
Acquisition / 

Valuation / Fair 
Value

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Lot 24, Jalan Teknologi, 
Taman Sains Selangor 1, Kota 
Damansara, 47810 Petaling 
Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia

Head Office and 
Factory Building

Leasehold 99 years 
Expires 2106

7 years 98,043 9,081 2007

Lot 2, Jalan Teknologi, Taman 
Sains Selangor 1, Kota 
Damansara, 47810 Petaling 
Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia Factory Building 

Leasehold 99 years 
Expires 2106 6 years 80,213 6,417 2008

Lot 24, Jalan Teknologi, 
Taman Sains Selangor 1, Kota 
Damansara, 47810 Petaling 
Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia Factory Land

Leasehold 99 years 
Expires 2106 n/a 174,240 15,450 2011

Lot 2, Jalan Teknologi, Taman 
Sains Selangor 1, Kota 
Damansara, 47810 Petaling 
Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia Factory land

Leasehold 99 years 
Expires 2106 n/a 145,377 9,393 2011

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

C-18-6 East Lake Residence, 
Pekan Serdang, Daerah 
Petaling, Selangor.

Service  
Apartment

Leasehold 99 years. 
Expired 2100 > 6 years             2,000             700 2008

B3A-7, Block 3A, Jalan 
Teknologi 2/1B, Kota D’sara 
Signature Park, Kota 
Damansara, 47810 Petaling 
Jaya, Selangor. Shop Office

Leasehold 99 years, 
Expired 2104 > 3 years             9,042          5,043 2010

B3A-5, Block 3A, Jalan 
Teknologi 2/1B, Kota D’sara 
Signature Park, Kota 
Damansara, 47810 Petaling 
Jaya, Selangor. Shop Office

Leasehold 99 years, 
Expired 2104 > 3 years             6,157          3,491 2010

B3A-9, Block 3A, Jalan 
Teknologi 2/1B, Kota D’sara 
Signature Park, Kota 
Damansara,  47810 Petaling 
Jaya, Selangor. Shop Office

Leasehold 99 years, 
Expired 2104 > 3 year             6,157          3,435 2010

No. B-22-2, Phase 1A Boheme 
Tower, Lot 54 Seksyen 42, 
Geran 71996

High rise 
Residences

Leasehold 99 years, 
Expired 2104 > 4 years               936             679 2009

No C-28-6E, Kiara 9 Residency 
Jalan Kiara 3, Mont Kiara 
50480 Kuala Lumpur

Condominium  
(type Duplex) Freehold > 3 years             2,694          2,150 2010

Parcel No. N-16-3A (North 
Wing), Type D1, Storey No. 
Level 16 Building No. 1, 6 Cap 
Square Condominium Freehold 2 years             1,389             902 2011

List of Properties
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Analysis of Shareholdings 
AT AS 21 OCTOBER 2013

Authorised share capital 	 :	 RM200,000,000
Issued and fully paid up share capital	 :	 RM60,000,000
Class of shares	 :	 Ordinary shares of RM 0.50 each
Voting rights by show of hand	 :	 One vote for every member
Voting rights by poll	 :	 One vote for every share held

ANALYSIS BY SIZE SHAREHOLDINGS 

Category Shareholders % Shareholdings %

Less than 100 19 3.52 693 0.00
100 to 1,000 32 5.94 17,295 0.01
1,001 to 10,000 343 63.64 1,529,850 1.29
10,001 to 100,000 118 21.89 3,470,911 2.92
100,001  to less than 5% of issued shares 23 4.27 18,764,847 15.78
5% and above of issued shares 4 0.74 95,160,404 80.00

TOTAL 539 100.00 118,944,000* 100.00

*	 Excluding a total of 1,056,000 shares bought back by the Company and retained as treasury shares as per the 
Record of Depositors as at 21 October 2013.

LIST OF DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS

NAME No. of Shares %# No. of Shares %#

TAN KEE CHOONG 31,200,004 26.23
CHOOI YOEY SUN 31,028,250 26.09
YAP KHONG    - 0.00
DATO' MOHD SHAFEI BIN ABDULLAH 663* 0.00
WONG MAW CHUAN    - 0.00
Dr. LIM YIN CHOW    - 0.00 25,092,650^ 21.10

Notes :
*	 Held through nominee companies
^	 Deemed interested by virtue of his interest in HSC Healthcare Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 6A of the 

companies Act. 1965.
#	 Excluding a total af 1,056,000 shares bought back by the Company and retained as treasury shares.
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Analysis of Shareholdings 
AT AS 21 OCTOBER 2013 (Cont’d)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS 

Direct Interest Deemed Interest
Name of Substantial Shareholders No. of Shares %# No. of Shares %#

Tan Kee Choong  31,200,004.00  26.23  -  - 
Chooi Yoey Sun  31,028,250.00  26.09  -  - 
HSC Healthcare Sdn Bhd  25,092,650.00  21.10  -  - 
Dr. Lim Yin Chow  -  -  25,092,650.00^  21.10 

Notes :
^ 	Deemed interested by virtue of his interest in HSC Healthcare Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 6A of the 

companies Act. 1965.
#	 Excluding a total af 1,056,000 shares bought back by the Company and retained as treasury shares. 	
	
SHARES IN RELATED CORPORATION 	
	
There is no change in the deemed interest of Directors in related corporation as discolosed in the Directors' 
Report for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 on page 68 of the Annual Report.	

LIST OF THIRTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

NO. NAME NO.OF SHARES %#

1 TAN KEE CHOONG
 

31,200,004 26.23

2 CHOOI YOEY SUN
 

31,028,250 26.09

3 EB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SENDIRIAN BERHAD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR HSC HEALTHCARE SDN. BHD. 
(KLM)
 

25,092,650 21.10

4 HSBC NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD
EXEMPT AN FOR HSBC PRIVATE BANK (SUISSE) S.A.  
(SPORE TST AC CL)
 

7,839,500 6.59

5 UOB KAY HIAN NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TAN THENG LIANG
 

5,866,000 4.93

6 ULTRA EQUIPMENT SDN. BHD.
 

2,382,000 2.00

7 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR MOHD ANWAR BIN HAJI 
ABDUL WAHAB
 

2,250,000 1.89

8 CHING YOU LIN
 

1,980,000 1.66

9 ANG CHEK PEOW
 

1,363,100 1.15
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LIST OF THIRTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d)

NO. NAME NO.OF SHARES %#

10 LEONG KIN SAN
 

702,000 0.59

11 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
CIMB BANK FOR KOH KIN LIP (MY0502)
 

700,000 0.59

12 TAN AH LOY @ TAN MAY LING
 

641,500 0.54

13 TOH CHAU EE
 

434,500 0.37

14 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR YOONG FUI KIEN
 

364,000 0.31

15 CAROLYN WONG TARNN YOONG
 

265,000 0.22

16 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
CIMB BANK FOR SON TONG LEONG (MY1225)
 

240,000 0.20

17 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR FOO MOONG NAH
 

233,000 0.20

18 WONG CHOONG LOONG
 

186,500 0.16

19 NEO BOON SIONG
 

160,000 0.13

20 LIAN KOK WAH @ LIN KOK WAH
 

150,000 0.13

21 WIE HOCK BENG
 

150,000 0.13

22 LAU KEE VON
 

125,500 0.11

23 TAN TING HUAT
 

123,000 0.10

24 MOHD ANWAR BIN HAJI ABDUL WAHAB
 

121,247 0.10

25 CHIM WAI KHUAN
 

120,000 0.10

26 NG CHAI @ NG HOW ON
 

105,000 0.09

27 KOK FATT KONG
 

102,500 0.09

28 CHIN PUI JIN
 

100,000 0.08

29 REBECCA CHIM MUN YEE
 

100,000 0.08

30 CHONG HON MIN
 

96,500 0.08

#	 Excluding a total af 1,056,000 shares bought back by the Company and retained as treasury shares 	

Analysis of Shareholdings 
AT AS 21 OCTOBER 2013 (Cont’d)



143SIGNATURE INTERNATIONAL BERHAD (754118-K)
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Seventh Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at Greens I, 
Golf Wing, Ground Floor, Jalan Kelab Tropicana, Off Jalan Tropicana Utama, Persiaran Tropicana, Tropicana Golf 
& Country Resort, 47410 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan on Thursday, 12 December 2013 at 10.00 am for 
the following purposes:-

AGENDA

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1 To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 
together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

Please refer to the 
Explanatory Note

2 To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of RM150,000 for the financial year ended 
30 June 2013.

Ordinary  
Resolution 1

3 To declare a first and final single tier dividend of 1.5 sen per share in respect of the 
financial year ended 30 June 2013.

Ordinary  
Resolution 2

4 To re-elect the following Directors who are retiring in accordance with Article 129 of 
the Company’s Articles of Association:

(a)	 Chooi Yoey Sun

(b)	 Wong Maw Chuan

Ordinary  
Resolution 3

Ordinary 
 Resolution 4

5 To re-elect Dato’ Mohd Shafei Bin Abdullah who is retiring in accordance with Article 
134 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

Ordinary  
Resolution 5

6 To re-appoint Messrs. Crowe Horwath as Auditors of the Company for the ensuing 
year and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

Ordinary  
Resolution 6

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS:

To consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolutions:- 

7 Authority to Issue Shares Pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965.

“THAT  pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965, the Articles of Association 
of the Company and subject to the approvals of the relevant governmental and/or 
regulatory authorities, the Directors be and are hereby empowered to issue shares 
in the Company, at any time to such persons and upon such terms and conditions 
and for such purposes as the Directors may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit, 
provided that the aggregate number of shares to be issued does not exceed ten 
percent (10%) of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being AND 
THAT the Directors be and are also empowered to obtain the approval for the listing 
of and quotation for the additional shares so issued on Bursa Malaysia Securities 
Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) AND THAT such authority shall continue to be in force 
until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.”

Ordinary  
Resolution  7
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (cont’d)

8 Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related Party 
Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature (“Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate”)

“THAT subject always to the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities, 
approval be and is hereby given for the renewal of shareholders’ mandate for Signature 
Cabinet Sdn Bhd (“SCSB”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company to enter into 
recurrent related party transactions of a revenue or trading nature as set out in 
Section 2.2  of the Circular to Shareholders dated 20 November 2013 (“Circular”) 
which are necessary for the Group’s day-to-day operations subject to the following:-

(a)	 the transactions are in the ordinary course of business and on normal commercial 
terms which are not more favourable to the related parties than those generally 
available to the public and are not to the detriment of the minority shareholders 
of the Company; and

(b)	 the disclosure will be made in the Annual Report of the breakdown of the 
aggregate value of the recurrent related party transactions conducted pursuant 
to the Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate during the financial year on the 
type of recurrent related party transactions made, the names of the related 
parties involved in each type of recurrent related party transactions and their 
relationships with the Company. 

THAT the authority conferred shall continue to be in force until:

(i)	 the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the 
Company at which the Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate is approved, at which 
time it will lapse, unless by a resolution passed at the AGM, the mandate is 
again renewed;

(ii)	 the expiration of the period within which the next AGM of the Company is required 
to be held pursuant to Section 143(1) of the Companies Act, 1965 (“Act”) (but 
shall not extend to such extension as may be allowed pursuant to Section 143(2) 
of the Act); or

(iii)	 revoked or varied by resolution passed by the shareholders in general meeting,

whichever is the earlier.

AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to complete 
and do all such acts and things (including executing all such documents as may be 
required) as they may consider expedient or necessary to give effect to the Proposed 
Shareholders’ Mandate.” 

Ordinary  
Resolution 8
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (cont’d)

9 Proposed Renewal of Authority for the Company to Purchase Its Own Shares 

“THAT, subject to the provisions of Section 67A of the Companies Act, 1965, the 
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, Part IIIA of the Companies 
Regulations 1966 and Chapter 12 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa 
Securities, the Company be and is hereby authorised to purchase such number 
of ordinary shares of RM0.50 each in the Company (“Proposed Share Buy-Back 
Authority”) as may be determined by the Directors of the Company from time to time 
through Bursa Securities upon such terms and conditions as the Directors may deem 
fit and expedient in the interest of the Company provided that:

(i)	 tthe maximum aggregate number of ordinary shares purchased and/or held by 
the Company as treasury shares shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the issued 
and paid-up ordinary share capital of the Company at any point in time;

(ii)	 tthe funds allocated by the Company for the purpose of purchasing its shares 
shall not exceed the total retained profits and/or share premium account of 
the Company.  The audited retained profits and share premium account of the 
Company stood at RM1,178,170 and RM Nil respectively as at 30 June 2013.

(iii)	 tthe authority conferred by this resolution shall continue to be in force until:

(a)	 tthe conclusion of the next AGM of the Company following the forthcoming 
AGM, at which time the said authority will lapse, unless the authority is 
renewed at that meeting, either unconditionally or subject to conditions; or

(b)	 the expiration of the period within which the next AGM of the Company 
is required to be held pursuant to Section 143(1) of the Companies Act, 
1965 (but shall not extend to such extension as may be allowed pursuant to 
Section 143(2) of the Companies Act, 1965); or

(c)	 revoked or varied by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders in a 
general meeting,

whichever occurs first.

THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to deal with the 
shares purchased at their absolute discretion, either partially or fully, in the following 
manner:

(i)	 cancel all the shares so purchased;

(ii)	 retain the shares so purchased as treasury shares;

(iii)	 distribute the treasury shares as share dividends to shareholders;

(iv)	 resell the treasury shares on Bursa Securities in accordance to the Main Market 
Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities; and

Ordinary Resolution 
9

(v)	 any combination of (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) above.

AND  THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to give effect to 
the Proposed Share Buy-Back Authority with full power to assent to any modifications 
and/or amendments as may be required by the relevant authorities.”

10 To transact any other business for which due notice shall have been given.
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NOTICE OF DIVIDEND ENTITLEMENT

NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN that a first and final single tier dividend of 1.5 sen per share for the financial 
year ended 30 June 2013, if approved at the Seventh Annual General Meeting, will be paid on Wednesday, 15 
January 2014 to Depositors whose names appear in the Record of Depositors on Friday, 27 December 2013. 

A Depositor shall qualify for entitlement to the dividend only in respect of:

(a)	 Shares transferred to the Depositor’s Securities Account before 4.00 p.m. on Friday, 27 December 2013 in 
respect of ordinary transfers; and

(b)	 Shares bought on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum entitlement basis according to the Rules of 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

By Order of the Board

TAN AI NING (MAICSA 7015852)
TE HOCK WEE (MAICSA 7054787)
Secretaries

Selangor Darul Ehsan
Date: 20 November 2013

Notes:
(i)	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy/proxies who need 

not be a member/members of the Company, an advocate, an approved Company auditor, or a person approved by the 
Registrar to attend and vote in his/her stead.

(ii)	 A member may appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend the same meeting. Where a member appoints two 
proxies, the proxies shall not be valid unless the member specifies the proportion of his shareholding to be represented 
by each proxy. 

(iii)	 Where a member is an Exempt Authorised Nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial 
owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”) as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) 
Act, 1991, there is no limit to the number of proxies which the Exempt Authorised Nominee may appoint in respect of 
each omnibus account it holds.

(iv)	T he instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised 
in writing, or if the appointor is a corporation, either under its common seal or the hand of its officer or its duly 
authorised attorney.

(v)	T he instrument appointing a proxy shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at Lot 6.05, Level 6, 
KPMG Tower, 8 First Avenue, Bandar Utama, 47800 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan not less than forty-eight (48) 
hours before the time set for holding the meeting or at any adjournment thereof.

(vi)	 In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear on the Record of Depositors on 5 December 
2013 (General Meeting Record of Depositors) shall be eligible to attend the meeting or appoint proxy(ies) to attend and/
or vote on his behalf.

Notice of Annual General Meeting (cont’d)
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Explanatory Note on Special Business

To receive the Audited Financial Statements

Agenda item no. 1 is meant for discussion only as the provision of Section 169(1) of the Act does not require a 
formal approval of shareholders for the Audited Financial Statements. Hence, this item on the Agenda is not 
put forward for voting.

Ordinary Resolution 7
Authority to Issue Shares Pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965

The proposed Ordinary Resolution 7, if passed, will empower the Directors to issue shares up to an aggregate 
amount not exceeding 10% of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company for the time being, for such 
purposes as the Directors consider would be in the best interest of the Company without having to convene 
separate general meetings. This authority, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, will expire at the 
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.

This is a renewal of the mandate obtained from its shareholders at the last Annual General Meeting held on 
19 December 2012 and will provide flexibility to the Company for any possible fund raising activities, including 
but not limited to further placement of shares for purpose of funding future investment, working capital and/
or acquisitions.

The Company had not issued any new shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965 under the 
general mandate which was approved at the Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

Ordinary Resolution 8
Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue or 
Trading Nature (“Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate”)

For further information on Ordinary Resolution 8, please refer to the Circular to Shareholders dated  
20 November 2013 accompanying the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2013.

Ordinary Resolution 9
Proposed Renewal of Authority for the Company to Purchase Its Own Shares

The proposed Ordinary Resolution 9, if passed, will empower the Directors to purchase the Company’s shares 
of up to 10% of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company at any point in time, by utilising the funds 
allocated which shall not exceed the total retained profits and share premium of the Company. This authority, 
unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, will expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.

Please refer to the Statement to Shareholders dated 20 November 2013 accompanying the Annual Report of the 
Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 for further information.	

Notice of Annual General Meeting (cont’d)
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FORM OF PROXY 

SIGNATURE INTERNATIONAL BERHAD
(Company No. 754118-K) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

No. of Shares held

I/We 
(Full Name in Capital Letters)

NRIC No. or Company No.
(New and Old NRIC Nos.)

of 
(Full Address)

being a member(s) of Signature International Berhad hereby appoint 
	  (Full Name in Capital Letters)

of 
(Full Address)

or failing him/her, 
(Full Name in Capital Letters)

of 
(Full Address)

or failing him/her, *the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our proxy(ies), to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the 
Seventh Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Greens I, Golf Wing, Ground Floor, Jalan Kelab 
Tropicana, Off Jalan Tropicana Utama, Persiaran Tropicana, Tropicana Golf &  Country Resort, 47410 Petaling 
Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan on Thursday, 12 December 2013 at 10.00 am and at any adjournment thereof.

My/our proxy/proxies is/are to vote as indicated below:

No. Resolutions For Against
1. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees
2. To declare a first and final single tier dividend of 1.5 sen per share
3. To re-elect Chooi Yoey Sun as Director
4. To re-elect Wong Maw Chuan as Director
5. To re-elect Dato’ Mohd Shafei Bin Abdullah as Director
6. To re-appoint Messrs Crowe Horwath as Auditors of the Company  

Special business
7. Authority to issue shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965
8. Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate
9. Proposed Renewal of Authority for the Company to Purchase its Own Shares

(Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate boxes on how you wish your vote to be cast. If no specific direction 
as to voting is given, the proxy will vote or abstain at his discretion.)

Signed this  day of , 2013
						    

Signature of Shareholder
 
*Strike out whichever not applicable 

Notes:
(i)	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy/proxies who need not be a member/

members of the Company, an advocate, an approved Company auditor, or a person approved by the Registrar to attend and vote in his/
her stead.

(ii)	 A member may appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend the same meeting. Where a member appoints two proxies, the proxies 
shall not be valid unless the member specifies the proportion of his shareholding to be represented by each proxy. 

(iii)	 Where a member is an Exempt Authorised Nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one 
securities account (“omnibus account”) as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991, there is no limit to 
the number of proxies which the Exempt Authorised Nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

(iv)	T he instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing, or if 
the appointor is a corporation, either under its common seal or the hand of its officer or its duly authorised attorney.

(v)	T he instrument appointing a proxy shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at Lot 6.05, Level 6, KPMG Tower, 8 First 
Avenue, Bandar Utama, 47800 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time set for holding 
the meeting or at any adjournment thereof.

(vi)	 In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear on the Record of Depositors on 5 December 2013 (General 
Meeting Record of Depositors) shall be eligible to attend the meeting or appoint proxy(ies) to attend and/or vote on his behalf.

For appointment of two proxies, the 
shareholdings to be represented by the proxies: 
Proxies % of shares
Proxy 1
Proxy 2
Total 100%
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AFFIX
STAMP

To:	 SIGNATURE INTERNATIONAL BERHAD
	 Lot 6.05, Level 6, KPMG Tower
	 8 First Avenue, Bandar Utama
	 47800 Petaling Jaya, Selangor

Then fold here

1st fold here
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